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I. Federal Jurisdiction:

a. Upside:

i. Fix collective action problem

ii. Check local corruption

iii. Resources: feds are resource rich b/c they get to pick & choose the cases they want

b. Downside:

i. Local option: peeps different from state to state

ii. Fear of concentrated government

iii. Local corruption at the federal level

II. Advantages of Federal Prosecution

a. Prosecutorial Assets under federal law

i. Prosecutor-friendly procedure

1. national subpoena through grand jury authority

2. material witness warrants allow indefinite detention of W’s w/ testimony material to federal investigation

3. politically insulated judges

4. immunity grants (encourages production of incriminating testimony, evidence, etc. )

5. electronic surveillance

a. telephone. Only requires consent of one party conversations. Pen registers record every call made from individual telephone. Wiretape “only threat to federal prosecution is that the electricity goes out”. 

b. Hidden listening devices 

c. Tracking devices. No REP in public, need court order to track in private areas

d. Sneal-and-peek warrants for purpose of planting bugs. Can delay notice. 

ii. Broad statutes

1. extensive LH and case law to draw on

2. organizational statute (eg. RICO) punish agreement to behave badly

3. broad penal ranges (eg drug laws) allow prosecutors to force pleas

iii. more effective punishment

1. smaller case load (2-3% of total)

2. guidelines limit intake into system

3. state prisons suck

4. minimum mandatories

iv. special advantages in drug cases

1. sophistication/experience

2. entire conduct can occur outside country under 21 USC §959 ( Noriega)
v. special advantages in multijurisdictional cases

1.  no local jurisdictional conflicts but US attorneys can be rivals

2. task forces (include both local and nat’l officers; experts, specialists, etc. 

3. equipped to deal w/ complexity  (eg computer fraud) – economies of scale

4. state prosecutors compromised (political pressures, campaigning themselves)

b. prosecutorial discretion under federal law

i.  no restrictions in case law. see  Armstrong, Ds must show individualized evidence of discrimination to make out selective prosecution case. 

ii. McDade Amendment (ethical rules of (licensing) state bar apply. State have used this to restrain federal prosecutors. Penalty is censure or pull the ticket

iii. Hyde Amendment. Vexations Prosecution( govt pays costs and fees

c. Petite Policy USAM  requires weighing of these elements in determining whether to decline prosecution where D is subject to prosecution in another jurisdiction

i. Substantial federal interest would be served

ii. Strength of other jurisdiction’s interest in prosecution

iii. Other jurisdiction’s ability and willingness to prosecute effectively

iv. Probable sentence if person is convicted in other jurisdictions (including collateral consequences, such as disbarment). 

III. Federal Criminal Law Generally

a. Authority for Federal Criminal Law

i. Constitution – Article I, Section 8 (Enumerated Powers of Congress)

1. All authority to create federal criminal laws must stem from one of the enumerated powers given to Congress in this section.

ii. Common Law

1. Law making by the courts is not allowed under the Constitution.  Thus, it is accurate to say that there is no such thing as a federal Common Law Crime.

2. The Common Law is simply used as a interpretive tool in understanding federal statutes and constitutional issues

iii. Federalism

1. Tenth Amendment to the Constitution ( Reserves all powers not expressly delegated to the federal legislature in Article I, Section 8 to the States.

2. Again, MUST keep in mind that ANY federal criminal law must stem from one of the enumerated powers in Article I, Section 8.  Often, this might be a tenuous connection, but the arguments must still be made (see Commerce Clause discussion below).

b. General Areas of Federal Criminal Law

i. Direct Federal Crimes

1. Exist to protect a DIRECT FEDERAL INTEREST.

2. These are crimes where you can clearly identify a threat or injury to the federal government.  For example, laws against counterfeiting money.

ii. Auxiliary Federal Crimes

1. States have the authority to criminalize acts in order to protect private citizens from each other.

2. Auxiliary federal crimes encroach on these state laws.

3. Best examples are the federal laws that have been passed under the Commerce Clause.

IV. The Commerce Clause

a. Article I, Section 6, Clause 3

i. In the twentieth century, the Commerce Clause has been the main jurisdictional hook for the creation of federal criminal laws.

b. Development of the Jurisdictional Hook under the Commerce Clause:

3 different approaches to interstate crime under Commerce Clause:


 We think they’re:

1. channels of interstate commerce. i.e., transportation

2. instrumentalities

3. persons or things in interstate commerce

4. Otherwise, to be permissible under the commerce clause, regulated transaction must be commercial. This preserves Wickard v Filburn.

ii. PROHIBITED ACT + TRANSPORTATION

Initially, federal criminal laws passed under the Commerce Clause focused on prohibited items that crossed state lines.  The jurisdictional hook under the Commerce Clause was the TRANSPORTATION ACROSS STATE LINES.

1. Mann Act ( Transporting women across state lines for “immoral purposes.”

2. Dyer Act ( Stolen cars.

3. Child Pornography ( Unlawful depictions.

iii. TRANSPORTATION:

1.  traveling across state line for purposes of committing a crime, shipping things across state lines, ect. 

Lately, Commerce Clause legislation has increasingly focused more on the TRANSPORTATION aspect.

2. Telephone communications across state lines and wire fraud (distinguish from Mail Fraud ( different jurisdictional hook, that’s instrumentality?)

a. US. v. Gilbert (1999): proscribes bomb threat through use of a telephone or other instrument of commerce.

3. Car Jacking Statute ( becomes federal offense once you cross state lines.

4. Felony Gun Laws ( Felon cannot possess a gun that has crossed state lines.

5. Mann Act( Hoke v. US (1913) no transporting peeps for purposes of prostitution or debauchery.  prostitution is commercialized sex, but what’s debauchery? Is that a regulation of commerce? Ct said Mann Act was constitutional.

6. Problems with focusing on TRANSPORTATION

a. FEDERALISM: 

i. Champion v. Ames (the Lottery Case), 188 U.S. 321 (1903): suppression of Lottery Traffic. SCt. Split 5-4. Dissent said it wasn’t an article of commerce simply b/c it was transported interstate.   Promote federalism? IL says no, NV says yes, NV has to say no to IL residents, thereby reinforcing IL laws.

ii. Protecting a federal function? 

b. FULL FAITH & CREDIT:

i. Problem of same-sex marriages in Hawaii but not IL

c. FOCUS – 

i. Newer developments tend to focus more on transportation rather than the wrongful act itself.  Travel acts: force litigation over technicalities

ii. US v. Page (6th Cirt. 1999) Violence Against Women Act, criminalized interstate domestic violence and interstate violation of protection orders.  Focused on whether the crime of violence (beating that occurred in only one state) occurred across state lines, or whether omission in not taking her to hospital when crossed to another state was a crime of violence itself.   

d. JURISDICTIONAL GAPS – 

i. Focus on transportation across state lines also has adverse jurisdictional implications.

ii. (ex) Wire Fraud ( If a corporation commits wire fraud, but all of the wires were sent in-state, then there is a jurisdictional gap that precludes prosecution under federal Wire Fraud Act.

e. MERIT 

i.  Jurisdiction gives no gauge as to the merit of prosecution.  Further, the existence of federal jurisdiction does nothing to shed light on whether the wrongful act is really a federal crime or a state crime.

f. Judge Friendly, p. 28: why should federal government care?

g. MANUFACTURING JURISDICTION:

i. Detours that make perps cross a state line:  not entrapment if the perp. was predisposed to cross the line anyway.  Judge Friendly refused to allow federal agents to manufacture jurisdiction: can’t cross the bridge to NJ and make a call to the target. 

iv. AFFECTING COMMERCE

The latest jurisdictional approach has been “affecting commerce.”  Form over substance? 

1. Anti-Racketeering Act (1934)

a. First federal criminal statute to use the “affecting commerce” jurisdictional hook.

b. “Any person who, in connection with or in relation to any act in any way or in any degree affecting trade or commerce.”

2. Hobbs Act

a. “Whoever in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or affects commerce . . . by robbery or extortion.”

b. Also includes any attempt to obstruct or delay

c. This drives home the extent to which the “affecting commerce” approach has REALLY expanded the scope and reach of the Commerce Clause. ( inclusion of the jurisdictional element in the definition of the crime:  outlaw a class of activities affecting interstate commerce. 

d. PROBLEM:

i. Power over  any  crime affecting commerce? Tail wagging the dog, where prohibiting grounds that don’t have much to do w/ commerce. 

3. NLRB v. Reliance Fuel Corporation
a. “[T]he term ‘affecting commerce’ represents ‘the fullest jurisdictional breadth constitutionally permissible under the Commerce Clause.’”

4. Different Tests for “Affecting Commerce”

a. Depletion of Assets Theory

b. Extortion “Affects Commerce”

c. De Minimis Test -???? From what? Hobbs Act?  

d. CONGRESSIONAL MOTIVE test:  

i. Alternative to letting the tail wag the dog:  is congress really concerned about commerce, or about outlawing prostitution b/c its immoral?

ii. Problem w/ this is you can’t psychoanalyze congress; they can pad legis. histories anyway to put commerce concerns on the record. Plus,   mixed  motives always a possibility.  

e. SUSBSTANTIAL AFFECT ON COMMERCE

i. Lopez v. US  (uses test)

ii. US v. Robertson (doesn’t use test where the enterprise is engaged in interstate commerce) 

iii. US. v. Morrison:  Ct follows Lopez
f. POTENTIAL AFFECT ON COMMERCE

i. US v. Staszuck: alderman took bribe on zoning change for vet hospital, but then vet changed his mind.  Issue was whether alderman’s extortion of a vet affected or attempted to affect commerce.  7th Circuit said: focus on the situation at the time of offense. Potential  affect on commerce is enough. If  they’d built the hospital that would have affected commerce.

ii. MENS REA REQUIREMENT?

1. Hobbs Act: shouldn’t we require mens rea when it’s a violation for  attempting  to affect?  Fake sting operations all the time in Mexico, where peeps attempted violation of Hobbs Act. 

5. PROBLEM w/ AFFECT ON COMMERCE

a.  Congress can just outlaw a class of activities. RECONCILE the following 3 cases:  

i. Perez: Loansharking, extortionate credit transactions even if purely intrastate; upheld even though statute lacked the jurisdictional hook of  “affecting commerce” 

ii. Lopez: guns w/in 1000 feet of schools(struck down) 

iii. Morrison: civil provisions of VAWA struck down.  But Congress said violence deters travel, etc.  

c. Perez v. United States (1971) : The Perez Doctrine: Affecting Commerce Through a Class of Activities 

i. Issue:

1. Whether Title II of the Consumer Credit Protection Act (18 USC 891) was a valid exercise of congressional authority under the commerce clause.

ii. Facts: 

1. § 892 of the CCPA declared it a federal crime punishable by a maximum of 20 years to make an extortionate extension of credit or to conspire to do so.  

2. Defendant Perez was a loan shark who engaged in extortionate credit transactions.

iii. Holding and Analysis:

1. Like Lopez, the CCPA did not contain “affecting commerce” language and, thus, lacked an explicit jurisdictional hook.

2. However, the Court looked to the congressional findings behind the legislation, which explicitly discussed the substantial effects of extortionate credit offerings on interstate commerce.

3. “Extortionate credit transactions, though purely intrastate, may in the judgment of Congress affect interstate commerce. . . . In the setting of the present case there is a tie in between local loan sharks and interstate crime.”

iv. Dissent:

1. Stewart argues that under the majority opinion, an individual may be convicted without any demonstration of interstate movement or any real effect on interstate commerce.

2. Basically thinks that this is too far an encroachment on state regulation of criminal local activity that is contrary to the intentions of the framers of the Constitution.

v. Not sure if this case has been overturned by Lopez, but I think it is important to note that both statutes did not contain the appropriate jurisdictional language to fall under the commerce clause.  However, the Perez statute was upheld, while Lopez was struck down.  Matt thinks that Lopez is a “blip on the radar screen,” almost an outlier, and that the scope of federal criminal law will only continue to expand.

vi. IMPLICATIONS OF PEREZ DOCTRINE
1.  Enlargement of federal enforcement authority:  Since total economic impact of almost any class of criminal activity substantially injures interstate business, most traditionally local crimes could be federalized after Perez, under a broad construction of the commerce power.  Perez offered an opportunity to expand federal criminal authority to cover cases that don’t individually involve an effect on commerce.  

2. Relieves prosecution of the obligation to prove a link to commerce in the individual case; also a possible mens rea issue w/ respect to the jurisdictional element is removed.  

3. Possibly easier for congress to define offenses in terms of the harmful conduct rather than the jurisdictional element now.  

d. United States v. Lopez   ( substantial effect on commerce test) 

i. Whether Title II of the Consumer Credit Protection Act (18 USC 891) was a valid exercise of congressional authority under the commerce clause.  First case in 60 years that the Supreme Court struck down a federal law on Commerce Clause grounds. 

ii. Issue: Whether the Gun Free Public School Act was a valid exercise of congressional authority under the commerce clause.

iii. Facts:

1. Gun Free Public School Act makes it a federal offense for any individual knowingly to possess a firearm within a school zone.

2. Senior in high school goes to school with a gun.  Originally prosecuted under Texas law for firearm possession on school premises.  The next day, federal agents charged and prosecuted under the federal Gun Free Public School Act.

3. Lopez challenges on Commerce Clause grounds.

4. As in Perez, statute does not make any mention of the jurisdictional hook.

iv. Holding and Analysis:

1. Rehnquist writes the opinion, says that there is absolutely no economic regulation here, the act is blatantly crime control.  No substantial effect on commerce.

2. Government’s theory on why it DID effect commerce:

a. (1) National productivity argument: Guns disrupt education, education is essential to productivity, so guns will result in a less productive work force.  This is how guns “affect commerce.”

i. Rehnquist does not really address this argument.  His concern, however, is that if you accept this argument, virtually anything can be federalized.

b. (2) Cost of crime theory: Cost of prevention is allocated across the country and all citizens bear the cost.

c. (3) Interstate travel:  no one is going to want to come to San Antonio to visit if there are guns in public schools.

3. Rehnquist is afraid of a “general federal police power.”  There are certain areas of law that are almost sacred for states (e.g. family, education)

4. If the federal government gets involved, you have two problems:

a. (1) Reduces laboratory effect: states as laboratories for how to deal with certain problems.  When the federal government take the lead and dictates what should be done, you have much higher stakes because it is binding on the entire nation.

b. (2) Preemption: Federal law will completely take away a state’s ability to regulate because federal law ALWAYS trumps state law.

5. Rehnquist’s tests:

a. (1) “Substantial effect on commerce” test

b. (2) Commercial Activity Test:

i. Buying wheat is a commercial activity (Wicker v. Filmore), taking a gun to school is not.

c. (3) Jurisdictional Element:

i. No explicit jurisdictional element in the statute.

ii. This is really the big issue here.  If Congress had included the appropriate jurisdictional language, maybe this case comes out the other way   but see US v. Page 

d.  (4) Congressional Findings ( in later cases this may be enough to save a statute…

e. IMPORTANCE OF JURISDICTIONAL ELEMENT IN A STATUTE:

i. Post Lopez, 

1. there have been thousands of jurisdictional challenges to federal statutes.  However, Matt says that almost all of them have failed.  As mentioned before, he thinks Lopez is not as significant as it might initially appear.  The scope of federal criminal law is expanding.

2. Courts of Appeal have consistently upheld the constitutionality of the Child Support Recovery Act and the Freedom of Access to Clinic Entrances Act, both of which contain congressional findings regarding the nexus to commerce (like Perez) but lack any jurisdictional element in the description of the offense.  

3. Hobbs Act: courts generally think its not necessary that the charged extortion or robbery have a substantial effect on commerce after Lopez.  Hobbs act regulates general conduct that  in the aggregate affects commerce substantially.  

a. Limitation on aggregation: can’t aggregate diverse, separate individual instances of individual instances of intrastate activity where there’s no rational basis for finding sufficient connections among them.   Hickman 

ii. US v. ROBERTSON  (1995)

1. Decided one week after Lopez. 

2. FACTS:  Involved RICO prosecution where question under the statutory jurisdictional element was whether the enterprise, a small gold mine in Alaska, was engaged in or affected commerce.  

3. HOLDING:  Court concluded that since the mine was an enterprise  engaged in interstate commerce (equipment from out of state, peeps recruited to work to and from Alaska, etc.) it wasn’t necessary to reach the question of whether activities  affected commerce.  

iii. US v. PAGE
1.  ISSUE: constitutionality of the criminal provisions of the Violence Against Women Act was challenged in reliance on Lopez.  Statute contains the jurisdictional element of crossing a state line, but the D argued that after  Lopez  there must be a substantial effect on commerce to sustain a criminal statute that regulates non-commercial activity.  

2. Court rejected the argument that Lopez extended the substantial effects test to all commerce clause legislation.  

iv.   US V. MORRISON  (2000)  

1. SCt struck down civil provisions  of Violence Against Women Act b/c civil suit clause of the statute, unlike the criminal provision, didn’t require proof of a nexus to commerce in the individual case.

2. Majority said Lopez limits Congress’s power under the commerce clause to the regulation of economic activity and statutes containing jurisdictional elements; evaluation of the legislative record didn’t show activity that substantially affects commerce; violent crimes motivated by gender animus cannot be arguably be considered economic or commercial the loosest sense.  

V. THE MANN ACT

a. MANN ACT prohibited transporting women for debauchery or prostitution, immoral purpose, etc.  Equal protection problems: Ct said there wasn’t discrimination btw sexes, b/c Statute prohibited  anyone  from transporting women, etc.

i. PURPOSE:  cut back on white slavery

ii. ELEMENTS: 

1. Knowingly transport or caused to be transport (or aid or assist in obtaining transportation for)

2.  Across state lines (in interstate or foreign commerce)

3. Any woman or girl

4. for purpose of prostitution, debauchery, or for any other immoral purpose: 

a. if immoral,  must show that dominant purpose was immoral ( Mortenson) 

b. Hoke v. US (1913) Ct upheld the constitutionality

c. CAMINETTI v. US (1917) question of scope of the statute

i. FACTS:  guy convicted of crossing line for purposes of making woman his mistress. Ct said words of the statute were free from doubt:  Guy crossed state line.

ii. Defense:  statute only intended to reach commercial vice. 

iii. HOLDING:  Ct said words of the statute are free from doubt: dude crossed state line.  

iv. LATER DECISIONS: profit motive isn’t  a sine qua non for application of thes tatute: while primarily aimed at the use of interstate commerce for the purposes of commercialized sex, the statute isn’t restricted to that end.

d. PROBLEMS WITH THE MANN ACT

i. Unconstitutionally vague? What’s an immoral purpose? 

ii. Look at legislative history: official title of Mann Act: White Slave Traffic Act. Stop trafficking in women and girls. We’d  like to limit this to commercialized vice: but can’t reasonably do that b/c the statute includes “debauchery and immoral purpose” so not plausible construction of the statute to say it only reaches commercialized vice.  

e. LIMITATION

i. MORTENSON (1944):  Ds took two prostitutes who worked in their brothel in Nebraska on a vacation in Utah; then all 4 went back to Nebraska and women resumed prostitution work.  

1. Dominant Purpose Test : intent to have girls engage in immoral conduct must be dominant motivation of the move across state lines.  

2. PROBLEM w/ this test:

a. Where’d it come from? No support in language of the statute. 

b. Still don’t know what immoral is

c. Mixed motives for crossing state lines

 I THINK THIS IS  HOBBS ACT STUFF__-- MOVE IT DOWN TO BE W/ OTHER HOBBS ACT STUFF

f. PURPOSE:

i. Cut back on racketeering activity, more generally to prevent peeps from screwing w/ commerce

g. ELEMENTS:

i. Obstructs, delays or affects commerce or the movement of any article or commodity in commerce

ii. By robbery or extortion

iii. Or attempts or conspires to do so

iv. Or commits or threatens physical violence to any person or property in furtherance of a plan or purpose to do  any of this

v. FINED 10,000 max, AND/ OR IMPRISONED not more than 20 years

h. US v. CULBERT (1978)

i. Facts:  D’s tried to get 100,000 from a bank by threats of violence to bank president

ii. Issue; whether got not only had to show that D violated express terms of the act but also had to prove that his conduct constituted “racketeering.”

iii. Holding:  court rejected idea that conduct must constitute racketeering. 

iv. Reasoning: 

1. face of statute: nothing says its limited to racketeering; would have a problem limiting it to racketeering because there’s no definition of racketeering in the statute.  

i.  CULBERT  and CAMENETTI:

i. Based on a view and the name of the statute, both Ds attempted to add an interpretive gloss that would have significantly narrowed the substantive reach of the statute.

ii. In both cases the interpretive gloss that was being proposed (“commercial vice” and “racketeering”) would have limited the application of the statute to criminal activities of somewhat larger scale.  

iii. In each case, the term that would have provided the gloss doesn’t have a very precise meaning.  

iv. Is it possible that use of these terms for gloss would help define the appropriate federal role in these cases?

VI. THE TRAVEL ACT: 18 USC § 1952

a. PURPOSE: aimed at organized crime figures whose criminal activities crossed state lines. Originally only covered interstate travel, but later included use of any facility in interstate commerce including mails and telephones. 

b. ELEMENTS:

i. Whoever travels or uses any facility in interstate or foreign commerce w/ intent to:

1. distribute proceeds of any unlawful activity

2. commit any crime of violence to further any unlawful activity

3. otherwise promote, manage, establish, facilitate, etc. any unlawful activity ….

ii. “unlawful activity”

1. includes enterprise involving gambling, liquor, drugs, prostitution, extortion, bribery, or arson. 

VII. 18 USC 1343 –Wire Fraud

i. Elements

1. scheme to defraud

2. intent to defraud

3. interstate wire communication that is in furtherance and reasonably foreseeable.

ii. Jurisdiction -- commerce clause

VIII. MAIL FRAUD: 18 USC § 1341
a. ELEMENTS:  get text on this: 

i. Whoever, having devised or intending to devise a scheme or artifice to defraud
ii. SCHEME to defraud – does not have to be completed

iii. INTENT to defraud – often proven by failure to disclose

iv. MAILING that is in furtherance and reasonably foreseeable – mailing requirement can be satisfied by either sending or receiving.

b. JURISDICTION: 

i. Postal Power – Article I, Section 8, Clause 7

c. SENTENCE:

i. Up to 5 yrs PER COUNT

d. DURLAND v. UNITED STATES (1896)
i. Cuts the mail fraud statute loose from its common law moorings.

ii. Defense:  under CL there must be misrepresentation as to some existing fact and not a mere promise as to the future.  

iii. Holding:  statute didn’t incorporate common law rule that representations could not fraudulent if only addressed future events

iv. Rationale: statute bars ‘any’ scheme

e. Neder v . United States (1999) 

i. Durland  might be reconsidered. 

ii. D charged w / filing false income tax returns and mail, wire and bank fraud.  

iii. ISSUE: materiality is an element of the tax offense, and most courts hold it to be an element of fraud offenses, but Trial Court didn’t submit the issue tot he jury.  Harmless error under 6th amendment?  

iv. Holds that statute did incorporate common law’s materiality requirement.  Reads Durland narrowly

v. Reasoning:  old rule that Congress intends to incorporate the well-settled common law terms it uses, and under CL meaning of fraud requires materiality.  On  Durland:  to some extent mail fraud statute different from CL, but Cts should look to CL definitions where possible.  

f. Intangible Rights theory:

i. Argument that mail fraud statute can reach schemes that defraud people of rights to honest services, privacy, fiduciary duties. 

ii. Impact: substantially extends the concept of fraud.  Typical cases weren’t about express misrepresentation or loss of money or property, element of deceit was satisfied by nondisclosure of dishonest or corrupt actions and loss of an intangible right obviated need to determine whether economic loss. 

1. (ex) OTTO KERNER:  failure to disclose a sweet heart deal w/ racing industry deprive public of faithful services as an elected official.  

2. (ex)  US v. George (7th Cir. 1973)  $1 kickback from box corporation on every cabinet that Zenith bought.  

iii. McNally v. United States(1987) 

1. Supremes renounced doctrine

2. FACTS: Kentucky state officials were receiving commissions from insurance agencies in return for insurance Ks w/ the state.  Charged w/ mail/wire fraud b/c deprived peeps of the intangible right to have state’s affairs conducted honestly.  

3. Rationale: text and legis. history directed toward ‘money or property.’ 

a. Also federalism – states should set own good govt rules

b. Rule of lenity where statutory language ambiguous. 

4. has to be property that’s deprived.  Right to vote can’t be subject of federal mail fraud count.

iv. Overturning McNally:  Congress enacted §1346 to overturn McNally and revive the “honest-services” theory of mail fraud( “the term ‘scheme or artifice to defraud’ includes a scheme or artifice to deprive another of the intangible right of honest services.”

1. 18 USC 1346 promptly re-enacts theory for deprivations of honest services. May not cover candidates, however.

2. pre-McNally cases are now persuasive authorities in evaluating scope of honest-services fraud. See Lopez-Lukis p.139

v.  U.S. v. Lopez-Lukis ((11th Cir. 1997) p. 135)

1. Electoral dirty tricks by co. commissioner to secure add’l vote to pawn The scheme involved a bribe to Lopez to deliver (1) her vote on key matters; and (2) control of the board, including electing a candidate who is sympathetic to the lobbyist’s scheme and defeat a candidate who is not.

2. HELD:: conduct does not have to be part of official duties to be part of scheme to deprive of honest services

3. REASONING: crux of honest services theory is that when a political official uses his office for personal gain, he deprives his constituents of their right to have him perform his official duties in their best interests—violates fiduciary duty to the electorates, and when he’s secretly making decisions in his own best interests, he’s defrauded the public of his honest services. Narrow interpretation os §1346 was erroneous, b/c scheme wasn’t just about getting one vote, Ct had to allow evidence of the larger scheme to control the whole board.  

4. Case also about ensuring pleading is broad enough

vi. US v. Margiotta (2nd Cir. 1982)

1. pre-mcnally  case revived by §1346 enactment.  Mail fraud conviction for Republican Committee Chairman of Nassau County for breach of honest services arising out of distribution of commissions from insurance purchased by the govt.  Tons of his pals got money in commissions while doing no work.  

2. HELD:  Margiotta owed the public a fiduciary duty and his failre to disclose material information about the commissions breached this duty and constituted a violation of the mail fraud statute.

g. Critique of Honest services theory of Mail Fraud :  WINTER, J. Circuit judge’s concurrence/dissent—critique of Margiotta 

i. Too Broad: No end to the common political practices which may now be swept w/in the ambit of mail fraud

ii. 1st amendment issues—theory here subjects politically active peeps to criminal sanctions based solely on what they say or do not say in their discussions of public affairs.  Margiotta got busted for his failure to say something. Could extend to campaign literature and public speeches

iii. Text: nothing about this in congressional intent, statutory language or common cannons of statutory interpretation.

iv. False analogy to fiduciary relationships: fiduciary is private, based on implied or express K. this is a relationship btw candidates/politicians and general citizenry in partisan, pluralistic political system

1. Actual obligations in fiduciary relationships vary from relationship to relationship: (ex) trustee’s actions are voidable if tainted by conflict of interest but corporate officer can generally act even if personally interested so long as action is fair to corporation. 

2. Have to ask: to whom is he a fiduciary? What obligations does he owe? How has he failed those? What are the consequences of deviation from that duty? (Frankfurter’s point) 

3. Here, Case law is vague on the answers to these, and all the candidates, civil servants, appointees etc. seem to have same obligations

v. Potential for abuse: selective prosecution possible, and this mail fraud power gives huge political power to federal prosecutors.

1. Can’t use mail fraud to prosecute political corruption generally, because then it could be stretched to include peeps who haven’t done the evil things.  This is a catch-all political crime which has no use but  misuse. 

2. Where a statute, particularly a criminal one, doesn’t regulate specific behavior, enforcement of inchoate obligations should be by  political rather than criminal sanctions
vi. Other concerns with the statute

a. Prosecutors may abuse discretion on political cases

b. Due process/notice – what does honest services mean in a political context?

c. Ad hoc federal code of political conduct tramples on state preferences

vii. Add’l notes

a. Enacted in 1872, oldest federal statute dealing with state crimes

b. Since ’94 has covered UPS etc

h. Issues of mail fraud to prosecute political corruption

i. Prosecutorial discretion

1. going for the big kill even if evidence only shows inconsequential misconduct. 

2. politically motivated prosecutions ( Otto Kerner 
)

3. Unlike RICO, US attroney’s manual doesn’t have much in the way of direction

ii. Vagueness

1. whether statute gives fair warning to those potentially subject to prosecution

2. susceptible to abuse by artbitrary and discriminatory enforcement

3. public fiduciary’s duty isn’t well enough defined to provide notice to potential D’s or to place meaningful limits on the discretion of federal prosecutors

iii. Anti-federalism

1. state and local officials are the ones getting prosecuted for corruption in fed courts

2. Federal authority to prosecute: (1) fed govt’s obligation to make sure states free of public corruption (2) corruption at state level hurts interstate commerce (3) even if no authority to directly regulate, for sure has authority to regulate the mails

3. Policy argument: need outside agency to prosecute AND importance of prosecuting public corruption is so great that it’s desirable to at least have an auxiliary federal jurisdiction in cases of extreme corruption

iv. Federalism

1. Less effective than local prosecution would be, since doesn’t mark any fundamental change in the local system

2. Occasional federal interference could just reduce incentive for state govts to clean up their own houses

3. States have significant interest in controlling their own political forums

4. State legislation may want to be the one to draw a clear distinction btw legislative compromises and political payoffs, and define terms like “corruptly”

v. Defining scope of public fiduciary duties

1. US v. Brumley (5th 1997)( have to have a violation of state law in order to have an honest services prosecution. Otherwise 1346 works as an enforcer of federal preferences of “good government”, with potential inroads into state matters and genuine difficulties of vagueness – Ct. grounded its opinion on bedrock principles of federalism.  Left open question of whether violation of state criminal  law was prerequisite or whether state civil law violation was sufficient. 

a. N.B.  this is probably inconsistent with  Durland 

2. Downside of reliance on state standards.  Some localities could have lax standards, and prosecution is needed most in places where state standards are insufficient, right? PLUS, this means that mail fraud means different things in different states.

3. LAW in most  circuits continue to adhere to the rule that no violation of state law is required in an honest services prosecution.

a. Limitation to restrain prosecutors that provides fair notice to would=be defendants noted in  US v. Bloom (7th Cir. 1998), which said that tradition against CL federal crimes and rule of lenity make it best to limit intangible rights approach to the scope it held when Court decided McNally,.  An employee deprives his employer of honest services only if he misuses his position (or the information he obtained in it) for personal gain. 
i. Mail and Wire Fraud to police the private sector under §1346

i. Coffee’s suggestion: when talking about non-governmental actors, should have to show violation of state law or federal statute independent of mail fraud statute. Same rule shouldn’t apply to public officials b/c there a share culture establishes standard of conduct.

ii. US v. Jain (8th Cir. 1986)
1. FACTS:   medicare and anti-kick back violations. Doctor got $1,000 a month for “marketing” which was really a K to pay money for patient referreals.  

2. ISSUE:  no evidence of tangible harm to patients, D says govt. failed to prove scheme to defraud.   

3. HELD:  no independent evidence of intent to defraud patients.  

4. REASONING: when official action is corrupted, essence of political contract is violated. But when there’s not harm to patient, hard to figure what intangible rights have been violated.  Wasn’t necessary to show actual harm to patients, but did have to show that actual harm was contemplated by the plaintiff.

5. RULE: intangible rights cases in private sector relationships have almost invariably included proof of actual harm to the victims

a. §1346 modifies the §1341 definition of “scheme or artifice to defraud” – essence of a scheme to defraud is an intent to harm the victim. Where no actual harm, govt. must produce evidence independent of the alleged scheme to show the D’s fraudulent intent.  

6. DISCUSSION w/ BIG AL: this is a double standard. No distinction btw private and public peeps in the statute.  

a. Isn’t whole point of intangible rights theory that you don’t have to have tangible harm?

b. This is judicial limitation of mail fraud statute by fiat.
c. desirable limitation? Any reason for mail fraud to reach this kickback?
i. No harm to government, they’d have to pay anyway
ii. No harm to patients, this was best treatment for them
iii. No unnecessary services; govt. paid fixed fee either way
iv.  At least  a conflict of interest.  He’s putting his own gain in the decision on where to send patients -- arrangement here was more likely to injure patients than Otto Kerner’s deal. 
v. Failure to disclose relationship was dishonest. 

vi. FN3: state regulation for this unprofessional conduct.  Relevant b/c they don’t need the federal prosecution…then again, “dishonest” to violate statute, so its violation of the fraud action too, right?

iii. US v. Frost (6th Cir. 1997)  (notes case p. 157)

1. HELD:  private sector prosecutions in a breach of fiduciary duty cannot constitute mail fraud unless it creates at least a risk of economic harm to the party to whom the duty was owed.  When it’s a public official, you’re talking a violation of the political contract. when it’s a private individual, weaker justification btw expectations are less ethereal and more economic than abstract satisfaction of receiving “honest services” for their own sake. 

j. Property under Mail and Wire fraud statutes

i. McNally Rule:   mail and wire fraud statutes reach only schemes to defraud the victim of property. 

ii. Carpenter v. US (1987) you can use wire and mail fraud to reach intangible property
1. FACTS: Wall Street Journal had column on stock tips, writer of column started telling brokers what he was going to put in it (presumably b/c peeps reading the column followed its advice) and they’d buy/sell  before  the public.

2. ISSUES 1: Mail/wire fraud—didn’t get any money or property from te Journal…

a. Ct HELD: journal was deprived of more than honest services—here object of scheme was to take Journal’s confidential business information (publication schedule and contents of the column), and just b/c that’s intangible doesn’t make it any less property under McNally. McNally doesn’t limited 1341 to tangible and not intangible property rights. Property right in exclusive use and confidentiality

3. ISSUE 2: Work place rules, not fraudulent activity

a. Ct HELD: 1341 and 1343 reach any scheme to deprive another of money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises. 

b. This guy’s undertaking was a promise no to reveal prepublication info and that was a sham because he passed that info on

4. ISSUE 3: wire and mail to print and send journal don’t ‘satisfy the requirement that those be used to execute the scheme at issue

a. Circulation of the column was anticipated and an essential part of the scheme
5. <Big Al’s ISSUE:  MEANS OF ACQUISITION: are you defrauding peeps to get the information? > 
a. Fraud here: failure to blow the whistle on himself, continued in employ, all the while pretending to safeguard secrets.
iii. Carpenter and McNally
1. confidential information is property, but intangible right to honest services  isn’t  property.  Courts don’t tell us why there’s a difference btw the two.  
2. difference may be that property is something that can be sold in a lawful market. Can’t sell right to honest services; can sell your labor to the highest  bidder, and your honesty may go with that but not on its own
iv. OVERLAP btw federal securities laws, and state corporate laws.

1. US v. Siegel (2nd Cir. 1983) Congress hasn’t ever attempted to regulate intra-corporate affairs, but these guys got busted for not putting transactions on the books.

v.  LIMITATION on schemes to deprive of property as federal mail fraud 

1. FN in Lopez-Lukis mentions SCt. decision and says extortion doesn’t count as federal mail fraud. Rejected theory that any scheme to deprive wrongfully is fraud, SCt. Says it’s got to be deceitful.  

2. Embezzlement, like fraud, involves misplaced trust and it does violate K obligation.

3. Theft: Except when talking about 1346 honest services, has to be 1341 deprivation of property.

vi. EXAMPLES of §1341 property

1. Business good will—yes, it’s property. (Israel Travel Advisory Service (7th Cir. 1995) lost business opportunities are property)

2. Reputation—what if broadcaster libels someone?

3. Frequent flyer miles, lost business opportunity, union ballots, shareholder’s rights, pay for services w/o paying for kickbacks right, material info that bank needs to make lending decision(  all property
4. Scheme to increase market share at another’s expense, ability to avoid tort liability that might arise from hiring murderer to drive school busses(  not property
5. Application for state license—not property.  Cleveland  

6. Other licenses
a. Martinez: Medical license is property;  Semiconductor Energy Laboratory Co.: arms export licenses are not property…

vii. Property in the hands of the victim

1. Cleveland v. US (2000) submitting false information on application for non transferable license to operate video poker machines…

a. Ds there had submitted application misrepresenting true ownership of the license, if they had revealed it they might not have gotten the license. SCt says no, it’s not property..  

b. HELD: for purposes of the mail fraud statute, the thing obtained must have been property in the hands of the victim.   In the hands of the official licensor the license isn’t property.
c. BIG AL: statute doesn’t say anything about being in the victim’s hands. Prosecutor should emphasize:  “any scheme or artifice to defraud or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses”( D obtained the license by fraud and its property in his hands, so he obtained property by  false pretenses.
2. US v. Walters (7th Cir. 1993)

a. FACTS: entertainment agent wanted to represent professional athletes by giving college athletes money and stuff in exchange for exclusive agency Ks. Knowing NCAA rules prohibited signing Ks while still in school, he promised to keep Ks a secret.
b. ISSUE: mail fraud, defrauding schools b/c athletes were no longer eligible for scholarships! Property went to players, not the D though.
c. HOLDING: for wire and mail fraud, D must have scheme to obtain property from the victim
d. US A’s argued: neither an actual or potential transfer of property from the victim to the D is essential( its enough that the victim lose. What the schemer hopes to gain plays no role in the definition of the offense. 
e. Easterbrook: joker could send invitation to surprise party, victim could lose gas money following it up, we don’t want that to be enough for § 1341. BIG AL: make it a bigger joke.  Farmer told to plow under all his crops, part of big joke.
k. MAILING under Mail Fraud 
i. Actus reus of the offense: causing mailing to be mailed/delivered by mail. 

ii. Mens rea: knowingly causing something to be mailed. 

1. D’s purpose of scheme or artifice to defraud

2. statute seems to require knowing that its going to be delivered, or that it’s foreseeably going to be delivered.  

iii. BEFORE SCHMUCK
1.  D’s could attack sufficiency of the mailing on the ground that 

a. counterproductive to the fraudulent scheme

b. occurred prior to the commencement of the scheme

c. occurred after the fruition of the scheme (unless mailings designed to lull victims would be an exception to this)

2. Schmuck  rejects these in favor of a subjective standard reaching  any mailing that is part of the scheme as conceived by the perpetrator. 
a. FINAL Schmuck RULE After Maze and Parr,: routine mailings can qualify when its not a governmentally required mailing. When it IS a governmentally required mailing, the D has to have somehow caused the mailing.

iv. SCHMUCK v. US(1989) 

1. Schmuck sold cars after rolling back odometers to dealers, dealers sold to customers, mailing was the dealers sending in the title application. 

2. HOLDING:  mailing of the title application by the dealers was sufficient for mail fraud b/c it came before fruition of the scheme. 

3. SUBJECTIVE STANDARD: Mail fraud reaches any mailing that’s part of the scheme as conceived by the perpetrator. Even innocent mailings.  Parr v. US
4. RULE:  Carpenter: relevant mailing was mailing the journal to subscribers.

a. ELEMENTS: Foreseeable mailing + Mailing has to make success of the scheme more likely.

5. REASONING: Peeps buying from dealers makes it more likely the dealers will go back to Schmuck.  This was ongoing fraud, and he needed dealers to come back. 
 

v. US v. MAZE (1974): 

1. FACTS:  roomie stole his roomie’s credit cards. Govt. said mailing was when the credit card statements were billed to the true owner. Ct said this wasn’t sufficient.

2. HELD:  Mailing was immaterial to the D’s scheme, and it came after fruition.
3. Distinguish Schmuck: repeat business needed for the deal, if dealers couldn’t sell the cars off and transfer title, they’d be stuck with them and never go back to Schmuck. Plus, since it’s an ongoing scheme, the mailing isn’t after fruition.
vi. Parr v. US (1960) 
1. school district employees used credit cards issued by district for personal use and stole money by writing checks to fake people and cashing them.
2. First mailing; oil companies sending bills the school, school paid them. 
a.  Distinguish Schmuck if oil company doesn’t get payment, then the D’s can’t keep using the credit cards. Isn’t that an ongoing relationship? in Schmuck only reason he cares is he wants to sell more cars to dealers again; in Parr he cares about gas company snookering the schools b/c he wants to do it again.
3. Second mailing: mailing concerning checks (tax money notices sent by mail, that’s how peeps paid them, so w/o those mailings there wouldn’t have been money to steal.  
a. RULE: Parr court:  Mailings compelled by law, or imposed by duty of the state can’t be made criminal under mail fraud statute.
b. Distinguish Schmuck:  mailing there was required by law in order for dealers to complete the sale. BUT the mailing in Parr would have happened anyway. Whereas Schmuck’s mailings derived from the scheme b/c they wouldn’t have been made but for the scheme (this isn’t really true b/c the cars would still have been sold) 
vii. Cases construing  Schmuck  in light of Parr
1. US v. Helmsley  (2d Cir. 1991)
a. Tax evasion by billing personal expenses to pay taxes.  Mail fraud in connection w/ false state tax returns.  Tried to say she’d been required to mail her state return, but Ct emphasized that D’s mailings contained false representations that were part of her scheme to defraud; in contrast,  Parr involved a scheme to steal funds that had been mailed, not a scheme to defraud.  
2. US v. Green (7th Cir. 1986) 
a. Mail fraud can be based on legally-required mailings that are impotant to the success of the scheme to defraud, and left open the question whether it would also be necessary to show that legally required mailings were made w/ specific intent to defraud recipients of the mail. 
viii. Causation and Specific intent to use the mails
1. General rule:  don’t have to show specific intent to use the mails. But when D charged w/ causing innocent 3rd party to mail the mailing, an inquiry into D’s state of mind is required to determine causation..  
2. Pereira v. US (1954) one “causes” a mailing” when one does an act w/ knowledge that the use of mails will follow in the ordinary course of business, or where such use can be reasonably foreseen even though not actually intended.  
IX. LIMITATIONS ON FEDERAL JURISDICTION IN FRAUD CASES

a. No federal jurisdiction :

i. over fraudulent schemes based upon their size or their demonstrated effect on interstate commerce ( unlike extortion in Hobbs Act) 

ii. over fraudulent scheme spanning several states if its is executed by means of personal delivery.  

b. GAPFILLING:  mail fraud charge  plus violation of specific legislation?

i. US v. Maze (1974)  Burger’s dissent
1. §1341 usually used as a first line of defense. When a “new” fraud emerges, use it as a stopgap device to deal on a temporary basis with the new phenomenon until particularized legislation can be developed to deal directly w/ the evil. 

2. Problem w/ not busting Maze is that mail fraud still being used to prosecute frauds in areas where specific legislation  has been passed more directly addressing the fraudulent conduct.  (ex:  securities, real estate and credit card frauds) – this is good b/c there are always new schemes out there.  

ii. Good gap filling v. Bad gap filling  :  Todd E. Molz p.191

1. Good gap filling:  when new crimes emerge and congress hasn’t considered them yet

2. Bad gap filling:  when existing statutes on the books, b/c then the Cts are undermining congressional judgments embodied in those statutory gaps.  Once congress has enacted particularized legislation, mail fraud statute no longer needed to act as a stopgap.    

X. WIRE FRAUD  18 USC § 1343

a. Transmission requirement

i. Must be interstate in character, though Govt. not required to show that the D’s had any knowledge or foresight of the interstate character of the transmission.  Us v. Bryant  (8th Cir. 1985) 

XI. HOBBS ACT

a. 18 USC 1951

i. Criminalizes (1) robbery,(2) extortion by force threat of fear, and (3) extortion under color of law. Also, criminalizes inchoate conduct such as conspiracy or attempt to do so

1. Statute of choice for prosecuting bribery of state or local officials

2. Jurisdiction – must show at least a de minimis interstate economic impact

b. Robbery

i. Rare b/c of jurisdictional concerns

c. Extortion by force, threat or fear
i. US v. Capo (2nd Cir.  1987) 

1. Facts:  job selling at Kodak

2. Held: receiving a benefit does not amount to fear of economic loss. Fear requires diminished opportunity . no increased risk if they didn’t pay, just stood to improve their situation. This is bribery.

3. Reasoning:: evidence insufficient to support convictions under Hobbs Act. 1) no evidence D negatively influenced to tried to negatively influence their job prospects 2) no W’s testified they were in fear of non-payment, this was obtaining property by hope. 

a. Federalism note: just bribery under state law

b. Fear is measured from prospective of victim

c. Fair treatment is norm for comparison

4. DISSENT: this is a jury question. If jury inferred from offer that there was a fear, Ct shouldn’t be resolving this.

ii. HYPOS:
1. fear victim says pay me and  I won’t turn you in.  Hobbs Act extortion
2. victim says I’ll turn you in unless you pay back what you stole.  Claim of right victim is just getting back what was taken. it’s not usually a defense to aggravated crimes, but under Hobbs Act it has to be  wrongful use of actual or threatened force, violence, fear, etc.
iii. DIFFERENCE BTW a THREAT & OFFER
1. Ct’s distinguish btw threats and offers/promises. 

2. Threat doesn’t have to just be unlawful action, just wrongful threat. (can threaten to tell someone’s spouse they’re cheating and that’s not unlawful but its wrongful) 

3. Threat: offer you’d rather not have.   Offer is something you would rather receive.  This is normative. 

iv. THREE BASELINES:
1. Fair treatment:  depriving someone of that is the relevant baseline (US v. Collins)

2. Status quo:  no fear of loss, just improving status quo, then no threat ( Capo)

3. expected treatment: if threat is to make you worse off than you’d reasonably expect to be, that’s a threat.  

v. DIFFERENCE BTW BRIBERY & EXTORTION
1. bribery: no fear of nonpayment. Bribery just secures an unsecured result. Doesn’t matter who initiates the bribery. 

2. Extortion: fear.  If D purports to have power to hurt the victim in economic terms and fear is induced, then it becomes an extortionate demand.  

3. Difference btw “I’ll give you $1000 for a job” vs. “give me $1000 and I’ll get you a job” First—there’s no fear of nonpayment. You could be considered fairly if you don’t pay.  Second: there’s a fear if you don’t cough up.

4. How we characterize the transaction determines who gets punished.  Both get punished in bribery; in extortion the person who makes the payment is the victim, the blackmailer is guilty.

5. bribery and extortion by fear are mutually exclusive transactions.
a. People v. Feld (1941) : extortion by force or fear( not the same thing as other kinds of extortion. But bribery and extortion are not mutually exclusive. victim was intimidated into making a payment and didn’t offer it voluntarily.

d. Extortion under color of official right.

i. Evans v. US (1992)

1. Facts: FBI sting, commissioner taking money for voting in favor of rezoning application & promise to persuade other commissioners.  
2. Issue: CL view of extortion requires an affirmative act of inducement for conviction under extortion under color of official right.
3. HOLDING: Passive acceptance is sufficient for a violation of the Hobbs Act (inducement is not necessary element)  if the official knows the payment (to which he isn’t entitled) is being offered in exchange for a specific requested exercise of his official power.  Quid pro quo requirement of a payment for a promise. 
4. Reasoning:   Affirmative demand of money isn’t an element of the offense.  Extortion here looks like “taking a bribe”, and commissioner did that, so we’re incorporating CL extortion into reading of the statute.  BUT “induced” in the statute doesn’t mean that the official has to initiate the exchange, since there’s a coercive element in the office itself.  This undestanding is consistent w/ historical understanding.
a. Language of statute requires a quid pro quo( official intends to payor to believe that w/o the payment the official likely to abuse power.
5. Thomas’ Dissent:  this is a distortion of “under color of official right”—D never claimed he deserved this b/c of some official right.  there’s no coercion  just b/c public office, statute requires inducement under color of official right. 
6. Kennedy on this reading: that’s stupid. “induced” doesn’t mean that the official initiated  the transaction. Just as plausible to read it the other way (“induced by color of official…”) supposed to apply the rule of  lenity.  “Induced” should mean D demonstrated willingness to use or not use power against the  payor. 
ii. Before Evans:  McCormick  (1991) Proof of quid pro quo is an essential element of a Hobbs Act prosecution based upon payments identified as campaign contributions.   D’s conviction reversed b/c evidence insufficient to support conviction b/c no explicit quid pro quo. 
1.  N.B.  Most courts say this standard still applies when violation arises out of the receipt of campaign contributions
iii. After Evans:  implicit quid pro quo, relaxed standard. 
e. Emmons exception
i. Does not apply to unions when acting toward lawful purpose

ii. Extortion under color of official right

iii. Offense is complete when accept money and make promise, not necessary to complete

f. Theories of Corruption
i. Trusteeship theory:  regards outside pressure as harmful to the extent that it interferes w/ a legislator’s ability to pursue the objective public interest. Corruption is immoral. 

ii. Mandate theory regards outside pressure as harmful to the extent that it interferes w/ a legislator’s willingness to enact popular preferences.  This parallels view of corruption  as being that which thwarts public opinion. 

iii. Pluralism: stresses the importance of a legislator’s ability to register accurately the various forces exerted by competing groups.  Corruption is that which is legally defined as such.   – public official is a purely passive agent, who responds more or less perfectly to group pressures—accuracy is assumed.  Traditional corruption under the law is bad, b/c it interferes with natural accuracy, but newer, more expansive theories are probably unacceptable b/c legislators should be able to respond to different interests. 
BRIBERY & Gratuities

XII. 18 USC 201: bribery of federal official


  
§ 201(b): bribery   vs.   § 201(c): gratuities

i. Jurisdiction: necessary and proper clause

ii. Both criminalize both sides of transaction 

iii. Bribery is a 2 way nexus, b/c quid pro quo.  Gratuities is a one way nexus. 

iv. Bribery if forward looking, Gratuities can be past or future (if you’re trying to influence the future, that’s bribery, if the decision has already been made that’s gratuity even if the act hasn’t been performed yet) 

b. § 201 (b): bribery elements   p. 234

i. 201(b)(1)—the “giver” whoever directly or indirectly, corruptly  gives, offers or promises anything of value to an public official…with intent to (a) influence any official act (b) 

ii. 201(b)(2)—the “receiver” (Federal public official
 )  “being a public official or person selected to be a public official, directly or indirectly corruptly demands, seeks, receives, accepts or agrees to receive or accept anything of value personally or for any other person.   

iii. Corrupt intent

iv. Quid pro quo ( this is the key distinction btw bribery and illegal gratuities.  Bribery requires quid pro quo, official action in exchange for a bribe.  

201 b is a forward-looking crime

c. 201c: gratuity elements

i. something of value offered given or requested for official act

ii. fed official

iii. corrupt intent

d. § 201 Gratuities
i. United States v. Sun-Diamond Growers  of California (1999)

1. Facts: Sun-Diamond gave stuff to Secretary of Ag.  

2. Issue: does the illegal gratuity statute require any showing beyond the fact that a gratuity was given b/c of the official’s position?  

3. Rule: 201(c)(1)(A) language, give “for or because of any official act” language means that you just need intent to reward specific past or future acts 

4. Holding: For violation of 201(c)(1)(A) must prove a link btw a thing of value conferred upon public official and a specific official act for or because of which the gratuity was given.  

5. Reasoning:
a. Either forward- or backward-looking crime

b. Fits when quid pro quo hard to prove

c. Narrow interpretation is more appropriate than sweeping prohibition b/c there are tons of statutes on this 

ii. Big Al:  Alternative reading would produce odd results (scouts busted for giving Pres. cookies)

1. Lots of other statutes out there forbidding gifts to federal officials, subject to exceptions that would be meaningless if 201(c) so broad it fit everything. Those are conflict of interest statutes on gifts…this is a statute on payments as rewards and w/ official acts narrowly defined, so they’re worse than other gifts even if you don’t construe the statute the way the SCT does.

e. ELEMENTS OF A § 201 VIOLATION
i. Corrupt intent in gratuities & bribery
1. Us v. Traitz (3rd 1989):  intention of payor and payee will not necessarily be the same in bribery and gratuity cases.  While both may be liable under 201 if requisite intent present, it’s also possible that only one part would be guilty of offense, if the other wasn’t aware that it was a  bribe. 

2. US v. Biaggi (see below also)—Congressman w/ “of counsel” gig at lawfirm got payments disguised as retainer and helped one of the firms clients get lucrative contracts.  Conduct 1/2 lawful, 1/2 illegal.  Just b/c 1/2 legit doesn’t insulate from criminal liability.  

a. TEST:  evidence has to permit jury to find beyond a reasonable doubt that unlawful purposes were of substance, not merely vague possibilities that might attend an otherwise legitimate transaction. 

b. ( Then how do you distinguish btw campaign contributions and bribe/extortion?

ii. Thing of value
1. Includes intangible or subjective benefit to the recipient. Corruption occurs when officeholder agrees to misuse his office in expectation of gain, doesn’t matter if he’s correctly assessed the worth of the bribe. 

2. Promise of future employment :  US v. Biaggi (2nd 1990)  if there’s a specific quid pro quo, then it’s a bribe; if no specific quid pro quo then conflict of interest statutes regulate this. 

3. Promise of leniency: US v. Singleton (10th 1998) violation of 201(c)(2) to enter plea agreement to exchange leniency for a co-conspirator’s agreement to testify against D. SCT rejected this, b/c prosecutors represent “U.S” and sovereign nation not included in the “whoever” of the statute. 

iii. Public Official
1. Any person acting for or on behalf of US…in any official function…

2. Dixson v. US (1984)  §201 can reach state and local government employees. TEST is if person occupies a position of public trust with official federal responsibilities.  Private group here was administering a social service program established by US Congress.  

3. Also, executive director of city housing authority distributing HUD funds (US v. Strissel)

4. County deputy who worked in local jail to house federal prisoners (US v. Velasquez)

5. Private citizens who peform delegated functions, like real estate appraiser who receives VA fee for appraisals, or inspectors licensed by USDA who apply USDA regulations ( US v. Madeoy,  US v. Kirby) 
XIII. FEDERAL PROGRAM BRIBERY

a. 18 USC 666 Theft or bribery concerning programs receiving federal funds

i. § 666 (a)(1)(B) RECIPIENT:  corruptly solicits or demands for the benfit of any person, or accepts or agrees to accept anything of value from any person, intending to be influenced or rewarded in connection w/ any business, transaction or series of transactions of such organization involving anything of value of $5,000 or more

ii. § 666 (a)(2) BRIBOR: corruptly gives, offers, or agrees to give anything of value to any person w/ intent to influence or reward an agent of an organization… involving anything of value of $5,000 or more

iii. Organization: must receive in any one year period benefits in excess of $10,000 under a federal program . 

iv. Exception: doesn’t apply to salary, wages, fees, or other compensation paid in usual course of business. 

b. Salinas v. US (1997)
i. Issue: Is 666 limited to cases where bribe has demonstrated effect on federal fund?  Does RICO conspiracy only aply when the conspirator agrees to commit  two  of the predicate acts required? 

ii. Facts: Hidalgo County sheriff and dumbass deputy let federal prisoner get some off his wife and girlfriend in exchange for money and a truck. 

iii. Held:  Statute’s expansive, unqualified language doesn’t require govt. to prove that federal funds were involved in the 666 violation. 

1. Bribe here related to housing of the prisoner anyway, and the facilities were paid for in significant part by federal funds.   Close enough to satisfy “whatever connection the statute might require”

c. Scope of § 666 after  Salinas
i.  Every state and county gets more than $10,000 in federal funds. Does this mean that now I any state and local employee is subject to §666 as long as they meet threshold amount of $5,000? No, because the “Whatever connection” language of Salinas may just mean that statute construed to require some relationship btw the bribe and a federal program

ii. US v. Santopietro (2nd Cir. 1999) need some connection btw the bribe and a risk to the federally funded program 
d. Sources of § 666 Power:

i. Necessary and Proper Clause;  Spending Power

ii. South Dakota v. Dole (1987) federal highway funds for state adoption of 21 as drinking age
1. SCT has indicated that you can’t condition federal grants any way that you like. Federal funds conditioned on state adoption of certain laws( limitation on Spending Power( condition on the federal funds must be tied to a federal interest in the federal projects or programs.  
2. Relatedness requirement serves to prevent the spending power from overriding all other grants and limitations of federal authority.

iii. McCormack  used “relatedness” idea in §666 context

1. said no connection btw the bribe (police officer took to prevent investigation of a drug suspect) and federal funds received (by the police department).  Ct concluded that the application of the statute would exceed Congress’ authority under the Spending Power. 

2. purpose of §666(a) is to protect the “integrity of federal program funds from theft, embezzlement and acts of bribery”

e. Scope of § 666
i. “benefits” Fischer v. US (11th 1999)  SCt rejected idea that benefit just means money, and held that health care providers who get Medicare benefits DO receive benefit but only b/c they get grants and other regulations, so not just for services. To determine whether program receives benefits, look at programs structure, operation and purpose: see if federal funds one of the reasons for operating program.

1. reasoning: a "benefit" is something that "guards, aids, or promotes well-being"; "useful aid"; or a "payment, gift [as] financial help in time of sickness, old age, or unemployment." Therefore, the Court acknowledges, an organization "receives ... benefits" within the meaning of ß  666(b) only if the federal funds are designed to guard, aid, or promote the well-being of the organization, to provide useful aid to the organization, or to give the organization financial help in time of trouble.

2. Thomas’ dissent: the only persons who receive "benefits" under Medicare are the individual elderly and disabled Medicare patients, not the medical providers who serve them. Payments made by the Federal Government to a Medicare health care provider to reimburse the provider for the costs of services rendered, rather than to provide financial aid to the hospital, are not "benefits.".

ii. “government ‘contracts’” US v. Copeland (11th. 1998) – doesn’t reach purely commercial contracts w/ the govt. (military contractor)

XIV. WAR ON DRUGS

a. Overview of the federal government’s War on Drugs

i. Why federally prosecute drug crimes?

1. Large sum of money spent on the WOD

2. The US has spent about $300 billion dollars in the WOD.

3. Drugs cost the US socially and economically  

4. Drug offenders make up about 60% of the federal prison population.

5. Moral harm of drug use

6. Street crime surround black market transactions

7. Violence in competition

8. Spread of disease

9. Health risks

ii. The downside of the WOD 

1. Incredibly expensive

2. Drug prosecutions affect families and communities 

3. Blacks are disproportionately affected, as parties involved in crack use/sales are almost always black males.

iii. CONSIDERATIONS

1. The main emphasis in federal drug enforcement activities has been on reducing supply.  These policies continue to evolve

2. DEA, aided by FBI, carries the major responsibility for the enforcement of criminal drug laws.

3. There is virtually no support in Congress for legalization or decriminalization of drugs.  (see, e.g., Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988).

4. Task forces play an important role.    

b. Legalization

i. Regulate everything, get better purity, less abuses w/ govt. monitoring

ii. Reduce blackmarket crimes

iii. Reduce prices, less crime

iv. Isn’t illegitimate pleasure—same effects as booze or cigs

v. Taxation generates revenue

vi. PLUS save a crapload b/c drug use  is  a crime and once you legalize it don’t have to enforce drug laws, do trials and long sentences for violators.  

vii. Downside- spike in usage once you legalize?

c. John Stuart Mill argument (can only constrict individual’s freedom when there’s harm to others. Can’t confine him just b/c harm to self) cuts both ways when you think of the externalities of drug abuse when it’s illegal. 
d.  EFFECTS of Drug Offense Enforcement:

i. DROP IN DRUG USE & PRICES
1. p.281 Cocaine has decreased in price( but marijuana prices going up:

2. marijuana is hugely bulky, easier for dealers to fill balloons with lighter stuff….so maybe the effect is that dealers switch peeps from the more benign substance to the worse stuff.  

3. Herbert Packer:  protective tariff. Provides non-competitive prices for peeps. More tariff, increases risk, increase price to offset the increase risk. So beneficial effect on drug sellers. 
a. Problem with this: prices aren’t going up they’re going down. P.281 
b. Of course, maybe the price would have fallen more w/o drug prohibition
c. Plus, drug us is down according to casebook. Up for high students, for coke and pot, but down for general population so it’s a success, right?
d. If prices are down and usage is down: what’s the explanation?
i. Reduced demand.( success isn’t on the supply side. But law enforcement has been devoted to the supply side.  
e. Then again: alcohol use is down and that’s not a result of the drug war.  Older population, more middle class, so general cultural phenomenon.
ii. HARMS associated w/ prohibition

1. Lack of quality control
iii. COSTS of DRUG PROHIBITION

1. Courts, corrections, the police.
2. Courts: increase in cases. Effect on the quality of justice? 
a. Will affect what prosecutors do for non-drug crimes b/c effects the resources prosecutors have for other crimes.  
b. Will adjust to resource constraints by increasing plea-bargaining.  
3. Dynamics of Sentencing
4. Private transaction btw dealer and buyer, so we compensate for lack of certainty by increasing the severity of the law. 
5. Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988: crack-powder; drug czar; overruling McNally on interpretation of mail fraud statute ; increased penalties w/ mandatory minimums.
a. 5gm. Crack = 5 years

b. before the act, 400 first offenders got sentenced for 5 years; 300 were placed on probation( now they’d get 5 years. Cost of incarceration would go from 1.5 to 35 million (not counting new prison construction)

6. between 1985 and 1995: open one prison a week. 

7. These days: 2 million peeps behind bars. 

iv. Effect on police practices
1. Training cops to use traffic law enforcement as form of drug interdiction…racial profiling, etc. 
2. Get rid of traffic law enforcement?  Why not just use photos? But there are all these incentives for local govts. (including federal financial incentives) to use traffic stops as drug search.
b. War on drugs threaten privacy or civil liberties?

i. Different kind of enforcement.  Don’t have a witness, transactions are private. If you’re gong to provide law enforcement will have to use intrusive law enforcement techniques. 
ii. Only lawful way out of mandatory sentencing is  substantial assistance (and for that you put your life at risk! Then again, life is full of choices)
1. So give cops name  even if not really sure, cops bust in w/ probable cause and look wherever they want
2. Undercover agents, drug dogs , informants,  sting operations, random drug testing, body wires
iii. Prohibition of victimless crime—always danger of selecting targets.
iv. Risk of racial profiling, or singling out poor peeps 

e. Drug Enforcement Statutes

i. The Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention and Control Act (1970) 

1. This was the first law to attempt a comprehensive scheme for both narcotics and dangerous drugs.

2. It remains in force today, and its Congressional findings are the basis for all contemporary drug laws.  

3. It established classes of controlled substances, each with its own sentencing schedule.


ii. In the 1980s Congress increased the penalties for most existing drug offenses, setting mandatory minimum sentences for most offenses

iii. 21 USC §841  

1. This is now main substantive statute in the WOD.  

2. It criminalizes the manufacture, distribution, or possession with intent to distribute any controlled substance.

3. It features the 5 different schedules for controlled substances.  These schedules can change, however.

a. Schedule I drugs have the highest potential for abuse, no accepted medical use and are therefore subject to the strictest controls.

b. Some of the classifications are rather odd.  For example, marijuana is Schedule I, while crack and cocaine are Schedule II.

4. Congress amended it in the 1980s to feature minimum sentences. 

5. The CA and AZ laws legalizing some drug use are trumped by § 841, so there can still be federal prosecutions in those states.

6. § 841’s penalty scheme also applies to the offenses of attempt and conspiracy.  (21 USC § 846)

iv. § 841 v. Lopez (Gun Free Public Schools Act)

1. There is no express jurisdictional requirement to be met by the prosecution.

2. It is hard to tell where drugs originate from, whereas guns can be traced.  

3. No interstate commerce need be shown (a la Lopez gun law)

4. § 841 doesn’t encounter the same constitutional problems as the gun law in Lopez. 

a. In Lopez, the statute attacked mere possession, while § 841 attacks drug dealing, actual transactions that are inherently commerce.

b. It is easier to prove the effects on commerce from drug-dealing than from gun possession. Congress thoroughly analyzed and documented drugs’ effects on commerce, i.e., that drugs are often shipped, consumption affects productivity, etc.   

v. 21 USC § 856 ( The “crackhouse statute”

1. Newly created in the 1980s

2. Makes it an offense to open or maintain a place for the purpose of manufacturing, distributing, or using a controlled substance, or to manage or control a building and knowingly or intentionally make it available for these purposes.  

vi. New civil and criminal drug penalties enacted:

1. Congress has created several non-drug offenses intended to contribute to the federal drug control strategy (e.g., money laundering, etc.).

2. 21 USC § 862 – A defendant convicted of either trafficking or possession of a controlled substance may be declared ineligible for certain federal benefits.

f. Sentencing and Mandatory Minimums

i. Congress has established a minimum range from 5 to 20 years, and your sentence depends on the type and quantity of the drug you are caught with. 

ii. 5 year mandatory minimum sentences:

1. 5 grams of crack

2. 500 grams of powder (Notice 100:1 ratio for powder:crack!)

100 grams of heroin

100 kilos of marijuana, or 100 plants

iii. A prior conviction will double the sentence, making the range 10 to 40 years.

iv. “Two Ounce Trick”: 50 grams of crack, 5 kilos of powder, and 1 Kilo of heroin will get you a 10 to 40 year minimum.  If you have one prior conviction, it becomes 20 to life.   

v. Guidelines are driven by the minimum mandatories, not by the maxima.

vi. Many states have followed the federal example in increasing penalties for drug offenses and relying more on mandatory sentencing.

1. Constitutional challenges to these sentencing schemes have been largely unsuccessful. (Harmelin v. Michigan)  

g. The 100:1 Ratio (for cocaine:crack)

i. United States v. Smith (6th 1996)
1. Defendant challenged the 100:1 for crack and powder under § 841 as being unconstitutionally vague.

2. Sixth Circuit upheld the use of the ratio.

3. Reasoning: Rational basis test:  and congress seems to think there’s some reason for thinking these drugs have different effects and so more or less dangerous 1) Scientific evidence suggests substantial differences between powder and crack as substances.  2) The ratio doesn’t violate substantive due process because Congress didn’t act arbitrarily or irrationally in establishing it.  3) Because §841 serves as a Sentencing Guideline, it is a guide for judges in sentencing and not for citizens in describing various levels of illegal conduct.  Thus, it does not suffer from vagueness.

4. Jones Concurrence: wasn’t prepared to say the 100:1 was unconstitutional.  Premises that drive the analysis are regarded w/ great suspicion, urges them to look more carefully at the reality of its impact on imprisonments.– Disagrees with the premises that crack is substantively different from cocaine, that it is more addictive, and that it poses a greater threat to society.  He is also concerned that the relative harshness of sentencing for crack offenses tends to punish black males disproportionately.  
5. Survey evidence: over 1/2 crack users are white, but over 90% of Prosecutions are of black peeps. More powder users white, but about even in terms of Prosecutions
v. US v. Chapman (1991)

1. Issue: include weight of carrier when determining weight of drug for purposes of § 841 and sentencing guidelines?

2. Holding: weight of blotter paper containing LSD, and not the pure LSD weight, determines eligibility for the minimum sentence.

a. Text of statute clear “mixture or substance containing LSD”

3. ANAMOLOUS RESULTS: 1 dose in glass of OJ gets you 10 years.  Sell 199,999 doses in pure form and you get 5 years.

4. DISCUSSION: Statutory Construction: if Congress didn’t intend what it wrote, you don’t have to follow the statute ( Hello, Riggs v. Palmer)

vi. US v. Lopez-Gil (1st Cir. 1992) D dissolved coke into fiberglass suitcase. Ct said weigh the suitcase. 

vii. BIG AL: every other court of appeals besides 1st avoided this outcome
1. 9th Cir. Refused to weigh cornmeal in addition to coke. (b/c cornmeal is yellow and coke is white so substances easily distinguishable
2. 3rd Cir: butterscotch sundae test: veneer of coke on bricks aren’t mixture. They’re like layers of a sundae, separate and distinct

3. 7th Cir.: (or was it 2nd Cir?) edible omelet test…Ctrefused to weigh coke and crème liquor although not layerd like a sundae. LSD and blotter paper was single serving like an omlette, but the coke and crème liquor wasn’t ingestible.

ii. Professor Sklansky
1. The 100:1 ratio embodies “unconscious racism” against blacks, as it causes blacks to suffer harsh penalties than offenders in other groups. revision should eliminate the disparity, Cts should require the govt to rebut the presumption of conscious or unconscious racism.

iii. Changes to the 100:1 ratio:

1. If change occurs in the crack to cocaine ratio, it will likely come through the actions of the Sentencing Commission and Congress.  The Sentencing Commission’s 1995 proposal to amend the Guidelines and relevant statutes in order to eliminate the 100:1 ratio was not adopted.  

h. Schoolyard Statute and other piggyback enhancement provisions


i. Congress has supplemented the standard § 841 offenses (manufacturing, distribution, possession with intent to distribute) with various provisions increasing the maximum sentences applicable to the underlying conduct when one or more criteria are met.

ii. The “Schoolyard Statute” (21 USC § 860):

1. Maximum penalties from manufacturing, distribution, or possession with intent to distribute are DOUBLES for the first offense and TRIPLED for any subsequent offense occurring within 1000 feet of a school.

2. Do these penalties apply where the offender merely possesses the drugs within 1000 feet of a school, but intended to distribute them elsewhere?

a. Circuits are split, but several circuit courts have said “yes,” because Congress intended to create drug-free school zones.  (But many have questioned the circuit courts’ reasoning.)    

iii. 18 USC § 924(c):

1. If you use or carry a gun in relation to a drug trafficking crime, there is a mandatory sentence of 5 years CONSECUTIVE time - 5 year mandatory minimum, and then 5 years for the gun.  

iv. 21 USC §861(a)-(c):

1. Maximum penalties for drug offenses may be doubled (or trebled for repeat offenses) if the defendant “knowingly and intentionally” employs a minor in the course of a drug offense.

v. Effects of these add-ons: 

1. These provisions might be seen as largely irrelevant, as it seems unlikely that offenders would be deterred by higher maxima.  Most offenders just get the minimum anyway, instead of the “mandatory” sentences.

a. Tremendous incentive for defendants to perjure

b. Prosecutors enjoy a lot of discretion 

vi. Do piggyback provisions create separate offenses, or just increase the sentence for the underlying offense?

1. Defendant is better off if they are separate offenses, as each must be named in the indictment and then proven at trial.  

vii. Apprendi
1. Gun crime where defendant shot at someone’s house.

2. The crime resulted in a sentence exceeding the mandatory minimum, because the judge found it to be racially motivated.

3. Sentencing factors themselves can be handled by a judge.   However, the court here said that when the sentence is higher than the range, all factors must be included in the indictment and the matter must be tried before a jury (excluding consideration of prior convictions, which is the judge’s domain).

United States v. Aguayo-Delgado
In Delgado, the judge found that it was 50 grams of meth (same as crack), so it is 10 to 40 years, the effect of this is that tens of thousands of people who could have wrote the habeas corpus petitions… D’s are placed in a strange position to argue no I did not do it, and also I did less than 50 grams…the effect of Apprendi is that it is not much because as long as it is within the stat range, then it is fine… also most of the time it is a harmless error because most people can be proven by the quantities. 

i. Extraterritorial Jurisdiction

i. Critically important to the federal drug strategy is intercepting drugs before they reach US borders, aiding other nations in their efforts to crush indigenous drug cartels, and bringing foreign drug lords to justice.

ii. BIG AL WAS BRIEF: 

· In personam jurisdiction: if you’ve gotten D in courtroom you have jurisdiction to try him.  the  Curr/Frisbee  doctrine: doesn’t matter if he was unlawfully shanghaied and carried in chains to court!  Toscanino:  possible exception for really really rotten offenses by prosecuting officers

· Subject matter jurisdiction. 1970 congress said unlawful to distribute, etc. knowing these substances would be imported into US. So there’s an express extra-territorial jurisdiction. Territoriality Doctrine:  can punish peeps outside nation’s borders if its acts were intended to affect the nation.   

· Fed courts also read other  statutes that  don’t  have the express extra-territorial jurisdiction provisions to have it, they look at congressional intent, etc. 

· Ex: Posse Comitatas Act: statute forbids the use of military troops for law enforcement. Doesn’t forbid lending equipment though.  Does this statute have any jurisdiction outside of US? DOJ takes the position that it doesn’t( military can do what it wants outside te US. 

ii. 1934 Act: personnel may not be detailed to another department to implement drug laws unless they get permission or something

iii. Distinct aspects of extraterritorial jurisdiction:

1. Limitations on a state’s jurisdiction over another state:

a. Jurisdiction to prescribe (upon other countries)

b. Jurisdiction to adjudicate

c. Jurisdiction to enforce

2. Some drug legislation (e.g., 21 USC § 959) explicitly provides for extraterritorial jurisdiction.

3. Restatement on Foreign Relations § 401 describes customary rationales upon which jurisdiction to may be based:

a. Nationality principle – States may assert jurisdiction over their own nationals for conduct that occurs outside that state’s borders.

b. Territorial principle – Asserts jurisdiction over conduct that occurred within the state’s borders, but has also been extended to cover conduct outside its territory that has or is intended to have substantial effects within its territory.  

c. Protective principle – Permits a state to exercise jurisdiction over conduct outside its territory that threatens the state’s national security.

d. Passive personality principle – Gives a state jurisdiction over offenses committed against its nationals.  (Still controversial)

iv. United States v. Noriega
1. A Florida grand jury returned a multi-count indictment against then-Panamanian dictator Noriega for his involvement in a conspiracy to import cocaine into the US.  District court considered whether the US may exercise jurisdiction over Noriega’s alleged criminal activities.

2. Noriega’s status as a head of status (through which he claims immunity) is irrelevant in the consideration of whether the US has extraterritorial jurisdiction over his criminal activities, which is the only issue here.  

3. The extraterritorial jurisdiction analysis applied:

a. Whether the US has the power to reach the conduct in question under traditional principles of international law; and

b. Whether the statutes under which the defendant is charged are intended to have extraterritorial effect.

4. Held:  US has jurisdiction over Noriega.  He was involved in a proven conspiracy to bring a great deal of cocaine into the US, which would be criminal quite harmful to the US.  Relevant case law and statutes support extraterritorial jurisdiction in such situations.

5. District court also considered Noriega’s move to dismiss the indictment on grounds of illegal arrest – that the US government’s seizing him via invading Panama was legally unacceptable.  

6. A court can’t be divested of jurisdiction (i.e., the right to try a defendant) simply because the defendant was brought before the court by illegal means.  (Ker-Frisbie)\

7. Despite Noriega’s claims that the Toscanino exception protects him, as the US invasion of Panama was brutal “shocking to the conscience,” he doesn’t show that the US violated his personal rights in any way.  

8. Noriega had no private right of action to assert that the US had violated international law without a protest by the sovereign government.

v. The court declined to use its “supervisory authority” to dismiss the indictment because the US’s actions did not constitute flagrant abuses of the legal system and dismissal was not necessary to preserve the integrity of the judicial system.

j. The Evolving Federal Strategy:  The Posse Comitatus Act (18 USC § 1385)


i. “Whoever, except … [where] … expressly authorized by the Constitution or Act of Congress, willfully uses any part of the Army or the Air Force as a posse comitatus or otherwise to execute the laws shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than two years, or both.”


ii. The intent is to restrict the direct and active use of the military for civilian law enforcement purposes.


iii. The Act has obvious implications for military tactics in the WOD (as well as fighting terrorims, etc.).


iv. Caveats:

1. It only refers directly to the Army and Air Force, although the Navy and Marines have long stood on similar principles.

2. National Guard troops are not subject to the Act and remain under state control.


v. Exceptions:

1. The Act only applies to direct and active use of troops for civilian law enforcement.  Less direct uses (advice, equipment loans, etc.) are accepted.  

2. Statutory exemptions allow the direct use of troops some domestic purposes (e.g., riots, protecting politicians, etc.).  

XV. Conspiracy

a. Definition:

i. Occurs when two or more people agree to commit a crime.  

ii. The goal of the crime doesn’t have to be formulated; there just has to be a plan.  

b. Charging a conspiracy:  

i. Usually based on § 841  

ii. Must pick a beginning and an end date for the conspiracy activity 

iii. Defendant becomes liable for all (but only) those acts committed within that timespan.  

iv. Must pick a naracotic  

v. Circumstantial evidence can be used in order to prove a conspiracy, so it is worthwhile to look at activities and statements of everybody involved, and generally the context of the crime.


1. This makes conspiracy convictions pretty easy to obtain.

2. Mere presence is one of the most common defenses to conspiracy charges.

c. Pinkerton liability:

i. If you are involved in the conspiracy, you are liable for all of the acts of your co-conspirators if they are in furtherance of the conspiracy and they are foreseeable consequences.

XVI. Continuing Criminal Enterprise (CCE) (21 USC 848) 

       See also Forfeiture § 853(a)(3)

1. It is the statute designed to reach drug kingpins, not just the foot soldiers.

2. The statute’s main advantage lies in its severe penalties; it features strong minimum sentences and life sentences.

3. 4 elements necessary to prove CCE:

a. (1) Continuing series of federal drug offenses

b. (2) Were undertaken by a person acting as an organizer or leader 

c. (3) The individual must have been overseeing at least 5 people

d. (4) The individual must obtain substantial income or resources from these activities

(No minimum dollar amount has ever been specified by the statute or by the courts.)

b. Obtaining a life sentence under CCE:

i. Must show the involvement of a principal overseeing several others, AND 15 kilos of crack, or 150 kilos of powder, or $10 million in gross receipts.


c. N.B. Minimum number of peeps acting in concert rule: Courts have generally agreed that it doesn’t matter if the cast of characterized among the organized/supervised changes over time, so long as there are always 5 or more conspirators.  There is some evidence that there don’t even always have to be 5 or more.

ELEMENTS OF THE OFFENSE
d. Manager, Supervisor
i. United States v. Church (11th Cir. 1992)

1. Eleventh Circuit ruled that the following are sufficient to convict an individual of a CCE violation:

a. Proof that the individual is an organizer, even if not the only organizer in the enterprise, and even if he did not have the same working relationship with each of the 5 or more people that he oversaw. 

i. ( doesn’t have to control the peeps that he organizers

ii. ( doesn’t have to be the dominant organizer

b. Proof that the individual is an organizer, even if he didn’t directly communicate with all the individuals beneath him in the enterprise.  

i. No need to show he conspired with the other 5 peeps at the same time

ii. No need to show that the five conspired with one another

c. Proof that substantial income or resources flowed through the organization, even if without proof that the individual received them personally.  

i. Trier of fact decides if D derived “substantial income or resources” 

ii. Us v. Jenkins  (10th Cir. 1990)

1. don’t have to be the dominant organizer, just have to occupy  some  managerial position w/ respect to 5 or more peeps.  Just b/c you’re not the kingpin doesn’t mean you can’t have your share of minions.

Buyer-Seller Relationship:  Supplier as manager?
iii. US v. Jerome (9th Cir. 1991)

1. Ct rejected claim that you could count D’s suppliers. An “organizer” must exercise some sort of managerial responsibility; one doesn’t qualify if one merely sets up a system of supply.” To b/w organizer w/in the sense of the statute is to be more than just a steady customer.  

iv. US v. Chalkias  (6th Cir. 1992)

1. upheld D’s conviction on basis of evidence that he used 3 customers as couriers and stored cocaine at the residence of 2 other customers. 
e. AT LEAST 5 SUBORDINATES

i. US v. Moorman (11th Cir. 1991)

1. Jury doesn’t have to agree on which 5 peeps D organized or supervised. It’s the size of the enterprise, not the name of the people involved, and you only need a consensus that were at least 5. 

ii. US v. Bafia (7th Cir. 1991)  <Posner>

1. CCE doesn’t require the defendant to manage 5 peeps simultaneously. Need a 5 man operation, no mater who the peeps are or when they have their “shifts”, there just have to be 5 slots. 
f. $$$ SCALE OF THE OPERATION

i. US v. Losada (2nd Cir. 1992)

1. no minimum dollar amount necessary to constitute substantial income for CCE violation.  (Congress would have included if it intended it)

2. income can be proved by  circumstantial evidence  of trafficking in large amounts of cocaine or large scale drug dealing. (Estimating $50,000 in 3 mo. Period b/c of high volume of phone calls, and it was his only source of income)

g. Continuing Series of Drug Violations

i. Richardson v. United States (1999)

1. Defendant Richardson was charged with violating CCE as the head of the Undertaker Vice Lords, who (among other things) distributed drugs in Chicago.  

2. Issue: D wanted instruction that jury must “unanimously” agree on which 3 acts constitute the “series of violations” requirement.

3. Held: by the terms of § 848, the trial jury’s CCE conviction was only proper if the jury unanimously agreed on what each of the “violations” were in the “series,” and they must agree on at least 3 violations in order to make up a series.  (In other words, the court’s review focused upon the word “violations” instead of the word “series.”)  Judgment vacated, case remanded to be decided on those terms.  Jury doesn’t have to agree on MEANS  of the violation though, just ELEMENTS. 

4. Reasoning: “violation” has legal meaning, (contrary to law) and the standard for finding a violation is unanimity.  1) want agreement on what D did 2) risk of failing to focus on specific or factual detail 3) limit on what juries can disagree about b/c of risk of  unfairness (4) unanimity w/ this element required b/c it’s got different language, breadth, tradition and other factors.  

5. Govt: too hard to prove, and CCE is about the drug business generally anyway.  (2) don’t have to agree on any other elements of CCE 

6. Dissent said that focusing on 3 individual violations within an enterprise that continuously committed thousands missed the purpose of the statute. 

ii. DISCUSSION:

1. ISSUE in RICHARDSON: is “continuing series” a single element of a CCE offense?  Or are each of the predicate offenses individual elements?

2. Rule on elements: can’t convict unless govt. has proven each element, (2) jury has to be unanimous, (3) indictment must specify each (4) beyond reasonable doubt on each

3. Big Al thinks that statute just requires proof of a series—don’t have to persuad jurors  what  violations occurred.  

4. CCE is a compound complex statute based on predicate offenses( if they didn thave to prove those predicate offenses, then peeps could be convicted of CCE w/out being found guilty on specific offenses.  Burglary has elements of breaking, entering, intent, etc. that you  have to be  found guilty of too.  ( in Richardson there’s a  concern about cumulative evidence, where there’s smoke there’s fire, so jurors won’t focus on specific factual detail.
5. Majority is concerned about status offenses: BIG AL: court is straining over this. Federal criminal statutes often depart from CL crime, which punished distinct acts at discreet moments in time; w/ rare exception didn’t punish status offenses; excluded character evidence, etc.  lots of changes like in federal mail fraud, where D gets to show lots and lots of dishonest acts which will show the scheme or artifice to defraud. CCE departure is bigger than CL model( “continuing series of violations” seems to be done through a showing of aggregate offenses, brings us close to status offenses, where it’s formally defined through acts, but really it’s about the status of  being  a kingpin. Majority in Richardson wants to get back to the CL tradition, and what D did at particular moments rather than a general assessment of kind of business he ran…with CCE there’s no requirement of specific acts unless we require the 3 predicate offenses

h. CCE and DOUBLE JEOPARDY

i. Double Jeopardy --  no 2nd prosecution on same offense after acquittal or conviction; no multiple punishments for the same offense. 

1. “same offense” even if it fals under different sections of the code. 

2. BLOCKBURGER TEST (1932)  two distinct statutory provisions constitute separate offenses as long as “each provisions requires proof of an additional fact that the other does not.”  Under this test, a greater offense and a lesser included offense constitute the  same  offense for constitutional purposes, b/c the lesser offense doesn’t require proof of any fact not also required for proof of the greater offense. 

No DJ for CCE + drug predicate offenses
ii. Garrett v. US (1985) charged w/ violating CCE and w/ 3 unlawful drug sales. Said the drug sales are double counting b/c that’s what the DA used for predicate offenses on CCE. 

1. HELD: Multiple punishments for separate violations that constitute the same offense are permissible when authorized by the legislature.  Main question is what the legislature intended.  The intent is clear on making CCE a separate offense from the predicate violations, and allowing cumulative punishments.

2. Presumption is that where 2 statutory provisions proscribe the “same offense” a legislature does not intend to impose two punishments for that offense.  ( use Blockburger to  determine what constitutes the same offense; legislative intent can overcome the presumption.

But wait
-- conspiracy is different!
iii. Rutledge v. US (1996): conspiracy is different. Not permitted to punish CCE and drug conspiracy b/c drug conspiracy  is  a lesser included offense.  Both are crimes of organized criminality.

iv. Successive Prosecutions
1. DJ bars successive prosecutions after either acquittal or conviction for the same offense. 

2. EXCEPTION to BLOCKBURGER RULE:  US v. Diaz (1912) where D prosecuted for assault & battery, then vic dies and he’s prosecuted for homicide. Doesn’t violate double jeopardy; would have been impossible to file second set of charges at the time when the initial set was filed.  Garrett applies this same rule to CCE offenses, since some of the predicate offenses hadn’t been committed at time of first conviction, so couldn’t go after CCE.

XVII. RICO – The Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Statute

a. RICO criminalizes four types of conduct:

i. USING or INVESTING INCOME

Using or investing income derived from a pattern of racketeering activity to 
acquire an enterprise engaged in or affecting commerce; § 1962(a)

ii. ACQUIRING INTEREST

Acquiring an interest in such an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering 
activity; § 1962(b)

iii. CONDUCTING AFFAIRS

Conducting the affairs of an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering  
activity §1962(c); and

iv. CONSPIRING

Conspiring to commit any of the first three violations; §1962(d)

b. Purpose: Plainly directed at organized crime and particularly at the influence/infiltration of legitimate businesses  by organized crime.

i. BIGGEST Prosecutions: Conducting the affairs of an enterprise through a pattern of racketeering§1962(c)…Sponsors thought §1962(a) and (b) would be bigger.

ii. RICO seems to cover lots of things that Congress wasn’t thinking of at all when it enacted.

iii. §1962 (a) clearly directed at mob. “derived income from pattern of racketeering activity to acquire an enterprise engaged in or affecting commerce; or to use . 

c. Definitions

i. Racketeering activity:

Any act or threat involving murder, kidnapping, gambling, arson, robbery, bribery, extortion, dealing in obscene matter, or dealing in a controlled substance or listed chemical, which is chargeable under state law and punishable by imprisonment for more than one year. 

Sedima v. IMREX  RICO takes aim at “racketeering activity” which is defined as: 

i. Any act “chargeable” under several generically described state criminal laws

ii. Any act “indictable” under numerous specific federal criminal provisions (mail & wire fraud included)

iii. Any  “offense” involving bankruptcy or securities fraud or drug-related activities that is “punishable” under federal law.

ii. Person: 

Includes any individual or entity capable of holding a legal or beneficial interest in property

iii. Enterprise: 

Includes any individual, partnership, corporation, association, or other legal entity, and any union or group of individuals associated in fact although not a legal entity

iv. Pattern of racketeering activity: 

Requires at least two acts of racketeering activity… the last of which occurred within ten years after the commission of a prior act of racketeering activity.

d. The Enterprise Liability : An Association in Fact as the Enterprise
i. United States v. Turkette (1981) SCt rejected the view that an exclusively criminal organization couldn’t qualify as “enterprise” under RICO.
1. Facts: The D was indicted under §1962(d) for conspiracy to engage in the narcotics traffic, bribery, and mail fraud… he was the leader of a criminal enterprise engaged in such acts

2. Issue: Whether the term “enterprise” as used in RICO encompasses both legitimate and illegitimate enterprises or is limited to the former. 

3. Holding: The SC holds that the clear language of the statute does not seem to limit the “union or group of individuals” to merely those that are organized for a legitimate purpose; the purpose of RICO was to combat the invasion of organized crime into legitimate business, so it seems appropriate to apply RICO to the source of the problem (organized crime); finally the court says that although it may expand the jurisdiction of the federal courts (since many of the crimes that fall under the RICO umbrella are traditionally state crimes), this court holds that Congress was fully aware of that when they drafted RICO, and they did not act outside of the scope of their power. 

4. Impact of this decision: RICO is not restricted to infiltration of legitimate businesses by criminal elements

a. An informal criminal association could be an enterprise in a prosecution under the statute

b. Thus two forms of “enterprise” are covered by the statute (legitimate business  or  informal criminal association) 

c. The court interpreted “enterprise” to be separate from “pattern of racketeering activity,” therefore proof of one does not necessarily establish the other. 

5. It seems strange that criminal conspiracy maximum penalty is 5 years, however the RICO statute has a conspiracy maximum of 20 years. 

6. The SC in Turkette elaborated on the elements of an informal criminal association: (1) “a group of persons associated together for a common purpose of engaging in a course of conduct,” and (2) an “ongoing organization, formal or informal, in which the various associates function as a continuing unit.” 

ii. Turkette Interpreted

1. United States v. Bledsoe (8th Circuit 1982)

a. RICO was not passed in order to reach two criminals who merely associate together and perpetrate two of the specified crimes, rather it was aimed at “organized crime”

b. RICO must have been directed at participation in enterprises consisting of more than simple conspiracies to perpetrate the predicate acts of racketeering. Commonality of purpose is often times not sufficient to distinguish between individuals merely associated together for the sporadic commission of a crime from an enterprise. 

c. In addition to a common purpose, an enterprise must function as a unit and there must be an “ascertainable structure” distinct from that inherent in the conduct of a pattern of racketeering activity.  RICO is aimed at more than simple conspiracies to hit the predicate acts of racketeering activity

i. Shared purpose

ii. Function as continuing unit

iii. Continuity in structure and personality

iv. Ascertainable structure beyond just the pattern of racketeering

2. United States v. Perholtz (DC Circuit 1988)

a. The DC circuit seems to be more lenient in the proof of an enterprise; the court holds that organization is an added ingredient to distinguish between a group of individuals who repeatedly commit crimes together… however this court holds that the proof of the enterprise may “coalesce” with proof of the pattern. 

b. three factors needed to prove an enterprise: 

i. common purpose, 

ii. organization, and 

iii. continuity + relationship (structure continues beyond the substantive offenses) 

c. Don’t  have to prove the existence of the enterprise and the patter w/ separate evidence

3. Chang v. Chen (9th Circuit 1996)

a. The Ninth Circuit agrees with the 8th… “at a minimum, to be an enterprise, an entity must exhibit some sort of structure for the making of decisions, whether it be hierarchical or consensual.” 

b. It is sufficient to show that the organization has an existence beyond that which is merely necessary to commit the predicate acts of racketeering. 

4. United States v. Davidson (8th 1997)
a. In this case, the length of the associations, the number and variety of crimes the group jointly committed, and the financial support given to the underlings demonstrate an ongoing association with a common purpose to reap the economic rewards flowing from crimes rather than a series of ad hoc relationships. 

5. United States v. Korando  (7th Cir. 1994) 
a. “There must be some structure, to distinguish an enterprise from a mere conspiracy, but there need not be much.”

b. “Continuity of an informal enterprise, and the differentiation of roles can provide the necessary structure to satisfy RICO’s statutory requirements. 

c. Look at division of labor, period of years

iii. Legal Entities as the Enterprise

1. It is much easier to demonstrate the characteristics of an enterprise, when it is a corporation, since all of the organizational structures are clearly in place. 

2. United States v. London: is the case where the court found that a combination of more than one legal entity or legal entities combined with individuals can also be the enterprise on the theory that they comprise an association in fact.

3. United States v. Masters where the entity comprised of a legal entity and several individuals. 

4. Courts have uniformly upheld treating governmental agencies as enterprises under RICO in the cases of governmental conspiracy

5. The jurisdiction hook for RICO is the interstate commerce once again… remember that all is required is the slightest of evidence that the enterprise affects interstate commerce

iv. Enterprises whose goals are ideological

1. National Organization for Women v. Scheidler (1994)
a. Facts: The D had run an organization that opposed abortion clinics, and had allegedly conspired to use threatened or actual force, violence, or fear to shut down these abortion clinics. The P claims that as a result of this conspiracy, the D has injured the business and/or property interests of the P. 

b. Issue: Whether the racketeering enterprise or the racketeering predicate acts must be accompanied by an underlying economic motive. 

c. HELD:  Rico doesn’t require an underlying economic motive. The court holds that nowhere in 1962(c) or the RICO definitions of 1961 is there an indication that economic motivation is required. An enterprise can surely have a detrimental influence on interstate or foreign commerce without having its own profit-seeking motive.

d. Petitioner: claims that RICO does not apply to them because their “enterprise” is not driven by an economic motive, rather they seek to shut down the abortion clinics. 

e. “Predicate acts, such as the alleged extortion, may not benefit the protestors financially but still may drain money from the economy by harming businesses such as the clinics which are petitioners in this case.” The language seems pretty clear here, the Congress could have easily limited the scope of RICO by including in the language of the statute that only those enterprises that seek an economic gain are liable to the act. 

e. “PERSON” who may be charged as RICO Defendant and the Relation to the Enterprise

i. Under RICO, criminal charges may not be brought against the “enterprise,” rather only those “persons” who have a necessary relationship with the enterprise… the four sections of 1962 above demonstrate the four acts that make a person liable to criminal prosecution

ii. The courts have generally concluded (with the exception of a couple of courts) that the same entity cannot be both the enterprise and the person who violated RICO under 1962(c), since that section requires the D to be employed or associated with the enterprise and conduct or participate in the affairs of the enterprise… however the courts have held that the same entity can be charged as both the person and the enterprise under subsection (a) or (b). 

iii. McCullough v. Suter (7th  1985)
Judge Posner notes however that an individual can be treated as an enterprise under the RICO laws whenever the enterprise is separable to the individual, i.e. formally via incorporation, or informally (when there are people besides the proprietor working in the organization)

iv. Fitzgerald v. Chrysler Corporation (7th 1997) <Posner>

1. Facts: Chrysler sold to its consumers of its motor vehicles extended warranties promising all sorts of warranty protection that they had no intention of providing. They are charged under the RICO statutes

2. Issue: Whether Chrysler can be said to have been “associated with an enterprise” to have “conducted… such enterprises affairs through” wire and mail frauds. 

3. The P tries to paint a picture by arguing that Chrysler is an enterprise… the allegation is that the affiliates and agents of Chrysler participate directly/indirectly in the sale of the warranty, so that they constitute an enterprise… the court points out though that if the P is right, then this would result in every RICO case against a corporation (that demonstrates a pattern of fraud), to result in liability. The court says this is outside the scope of the intention of RICO. 

4. Reasoning: The court imagines the prototype RICO case, then compares that to the present case: the prototypical case is one in which a person bent on criminal activity seizes control of a previously legitimate firm and uses the firm’s resources, contacts, facilities, and appearance of legitimacy to perpetrate more, and less easily discovered, criminal acts then he could do in his own person, that is, without channeling his criminal activities through the enterprise that he has taken over. In this case, the P tries to apply RICO to a free-standing corporation merely because Chrysler does business through agents, as virtually every manufacturer does, so it is much different than the typical case…. The result would be to encourage vertical integration of companies, which is clearly not the goal of RICO… therefore the court finds that Chrysler does not comprise an enterprise through its agents and employees. 

v. Notes about the Chrysler decision

1. Emery v. American General Finance Co (7th 1998) : “The firm must be shown to use its agents or affiliates in a way that bears at least a family resemblance to the paradigmatic RICO case in which a criminal obtains control of a legitimate (or legitimate-appearing) firm and use the firm as the instrument of criminality.” This limits the scope of the Chrysler decision by demonstrating a corporation and its agents comprising an enterprise. 

2. Jaguar Cars v. Royal Oaks: (3rd 1995) person and enterprise must be distinct.   “[A] claim against one corporation as both ‘person’ and ‘enterprise’ is not sufficient… a claim against defendant ‘persons’ acting through a DISTINCT ‘enterprise’… alleging conduct by officers or employees who operate or manage a corporate enterprise satisfies this requirement,” because a corporation is a legal entity distinct from it officers or employees. 

vi. Reves v. Ernst & Young (1993)

1. Facts: Jack White was the CEO of two companies, he embezzled money from one of them, and was found guilty of tax fraud… eventually Ernst & Young was hired in order to evaluate the strength of the Farmer’s Co-op (one of the companies run by White) company after White had left. Ernst & Young failed to disclose several important factors in their statements, the result is that a company that was held by the Co-op filed for bankruptcy… the note-holders of the Co-op filed RICO violations against Ernst & Young

2. Issue: Whether one must participate in the operation or management of the enterprise itself to be subject to liability under this provision. 

3. Held:  can’t violated § 1962(c) w/o some participation in the “operation or management of the enterprise itself”

4. Reasoning: 
a. language of the statute: “to conduct or participate, directly or indirectly, in the conduct of such enterprises’ affairs.” The court holds that to “conduct” affairs implies some sort of management. The word “participate” makes it clear that RICO liability is not limited to those with a formal position in the enterprise, but some part in directing the enterprises’ affairs is required. 

b. The court says that 1962 (a) and (b) can be interpreted to reach “outsiders” that infiltrate a company, however 1962(c) does not reach “outsiders” (unless it is shown that the “outsider” is associated with the enterprise and participated in conducting the affairs of the enterprise… in this case, the court holds that the “operations and management” test is valid, and Ernst & Young did not demonstrate the necessary control over the enterprise to be held liable under RICO. 

vii. Notes on the Reves Case

1. The 1st Circuit has taken the view that the Reves “operations and management” test only applies to outsiders of the enterprise… once a party is determined to be inside the enterprise, then it no longer is necessary to satisfy the test. RICO is intended to get at all the people who participated in the enterprise, generals as well as footsoldiers.  Nothing in Reves implies that it is so limited to outsiders.

2. Second Circuit has taken the opposite view that merely taking directions is not sufficient to constitute liability (i.e. ,janitors)… however they have found liability if the person exercises broad discretion in carrying out the instructions of the principal. 

3. The Eighth Circuit has held that merely furnishing an enterprise with professional assistance is not sufficient to make one liable, without showing more.  Test isn’t D’s status as a lawyer, but his  activity and either its ordinary help or he’s acting as a direct participant

viii. Reves  Tension:
1.  Reves narrows liability but there’s the other notion that RICO is to be liberally construed to effectuate its remedial purposes; Cts are construing narrowly to limit overuse in civil cases, and broadly in criminal cases to implement remedial purposes. Problem is that  Reves and other RICO doctrines are equally applicable to civil and criminal cases. 

f. Pattern of Racketeering Activity

i. H.J. Inc. v. Northwestern Bell Telephone Company (1989)
1. Facts: Bell was accused of bribing the MN Public Utilities Commission, in order to approve rates in excess of fair and reasonable amount. They are charged with RICO violations. 

2. Issue: What is the test for a “pattern” of activity required for a RICO prosecution.

3. HOLDING: Two requirements to establish a pattern Statute requires 2 predicate acts, but 2 may not be sufficient. Not the number of acts but their  relationship  to each other. 
a. Relatedness + continuity = pattern

i. Relatedness is basically just a relationship btw predicate acts

ii. Threat of continuing activity:  is either 1) closed-ended (proving a series of related predicates extending over a substantial period of time) or 2) open-ended (past conduct that by its nature projects into the future with a threat of repetition) short period + threat of continuity

b. Relatedness: 8th Cir. Said you needed at least 2 schemes for a pattern…but Ct said no, b/c if you have a scheme then its necessarily related… (same or similar results, purposes, victims, etc.)

4. REASONING: The statute first imposes the restriction that there must be “at lease two acts”, this serves as a very small restriction, however two acts are not necessarily sufficient. It is not the number of predicates but the relationship that they bear to each other or to some external organizing principle that renders them ‘ordered’ or ‘arranged’. 

a. CBC analysis no standard test for relatedness & continuity

b. Some courts try and establish a test that would narrow the pattern of racketeering activity by requiring the acts to be those traditionally associated with organized crime or of an organized crime type perpetrator. The court rejects this limitation, since the language is clearly very broad in RICO, although it may have been passed with the intention of attacking organized crime, the court says it was written very broadly, and it is not the court’s place to rewrite it… furthermore, it is very hard to define what is an organized crime. The court does find that Bell was guilty of RICO because the bribes were all related to accomplish a common purpose, and they continually occurred over a 6 year period. 

5. CONCUR: Scalia does not seem to add much, he simply says that the majority does not add anything… they merely say that the acts must be related and result in a continuous threat… he says that it is tough to define this for lower courts. 

a. not sensible to limit continuity to exclude short bursts of criminal activities

b. Scalia’s hypo: criminal acts all over, then it disbands after a week.  That’s crazy

ii. Notes on the “Continuity” and the HJ Northwestern Bell Case

1. The establishment of an enterprise that has been around for a long time can serve to demonstrate the continuity principle.

2. Second Circuit – seriousness & nature of the crimes that compromise the racketeering activity may influence the interpretation of the continuity requirement
a. In United States v. Aulicino 2nd Cir. held that where the alleged acts are inherently unlawful (murder, robbery), then the requisite of continuity is easily established, however in cases where the acts are not inherently unlawful (fraud in the sale of property), there must be a demonstration of the acts over a long period of time. 

3. Courts have held that predicate acts that occur as a part of a single, discrete and otherwise lawful transaction do not meet the continuity prong of the Bell Case. (World of Faith World Outreach Center Church v. Sawyer 5th 1996) 

4. Corley v. Rosewood Care Center Inc. of Peoria: the threat of a continuing threat exists if:
a. A specific threat of repetition exists

b. The predicates are a regular way of conducting an ongoing legitimate business

c. The predicates can be attributed to a D operating as a part of a long term association that exists for criminal purposes

iii. There arises a problem if the two acts that are charged to fulfill the RICO requirement are entangled… some factors that help determine whether the acts constitute one or two acts under RICO: similarity of purposes, results, participants, victims, and methods of commission.

iv. Discussion:  RICO AS A SENTENCING STATUTE
1. no vagueness problem: Hey, this isn’t worse than the Mann Act.  RICO is better b/c in RICO D’s can’t complain about lack of fair warning since predicate acts are already criminal offenses. Easy to avoid b/c you just don’t commit predicate offenses. In this way RICO is like a sentencing statute. BIG AL: if RICO was just a sentencing statute Scalia wouldn’t have a problem. but it  isn’t  and it wouldn’t make sense as a sentencing statute. It sweeps everything from dice games to business frauds, murder and terrorism.

2. pattern requirement is tough. 

a.  any kind of relationship btw acts: element of “relatedness” is supposed to be easier to define but the SCt doesn’t define it. 

b. continuity:  long period or short + threat of continuity( so we know weeks and months aren’t enough but is that a sensible limitation?  10-12 too short, 19 is okay. 

v. Racketeering Activity

1. This is defined by a list of several criminal statutes that fall with the scope of racketeering (there are about 60, so look on page 436-7 if you are curious)

2. RICO merely requires that the act be “chargeable” under state law (if the offense happens to be a state crime), so the courts have disregarded any procedural considerations that may prevent a conviction in state court, i.e. the S/L under RICO is 10 years, many state offenses have shorter terms, that is irrelevant under RICO though. 

3. Be careful when there is a conspiracy to commit a particular crime listed in Section D of the definition of racketeering activity… Section D says that the crimes listed in that section are part of a RICO charge, if they are indictable, therefore if the particular crime that you are charging does not have a specific conspiracy crime associated with it, then you can not use it as one of your predicate offenses… two conspiracies that otherwise qualify under racketeering activities can be sufficient to bring a RICO charge… so it can be brought entirely on conspiracy grounds. 

4. RICO Double Jeopardy Courts generally allow acts that have previously been prosecuted to count towards a RICO conviction even in the face of a potential double jeopardy problem: (the rationale is that the people prosecuting the first crime may not have realized the pattern of racketeering activity that exists)

a. Same predicate offenses:  suppose indicted for RICO and every predicate offense is one for which he’s been convicted and punished. DJ b/c statute doesn’t punish the offenses but the enterprise. Even still, Diaz won’t apply b/c they could have charged at last trial but didn’t. 

b. One new predicate offense then we know the answer. Charge the old predicate offenses + the new one b/c  DIAZ exception, you couldn’t have charged them all together before b/c the new one hadn’t happened. 

i. So separate offenses being charged together for RICO, w/ separate punishment under RICO, we can’t say this is a sentencing statute( so we may want more specificity

c. State and federal acquittals: Separate predicate offenses, but the D has already been acquitted of all of them. Double jeopardy to let prosecutor try again? US v. Coonan: it depends. If the first part acquittal was state prosecution, then yes DA can try again. If it was federal, then collateral estoppel problems. 

i. Prior in State court: under the dual sovereignty doctrine, a federal prosecution based on the same facts to a state prosecution is not barred by the double jeopardy clause because the state and federal governments have significantly different interests in the matter which their respective prosecutions vindicate

ii. Prior in Federal court: In the case where the prior prosecution was in federal court, the standard is whether the successive prosecution contains an element that the first did not.

d. Double jeopardy incorporates collateral estoppel: if one jury says D didn’t do A and B, another federal jury can’t say he did A and  B….collateral estoppel only works when the parties are te same, so would have to be fed govt on the acquittals to apply. US v. Pungitore (3rd 1990)

g. RICO Conspiracy

i. ELEMENTS
1. To prove a RICO conspiracy the government must establish: (1) that two or more people agreed to commit a substantive RICO offense and (2) that the defendant knew of and agreed to the overall objective of the RICO offense.
2. don’t have to prove through direct evidence (since conspirators hide their conduct), circumstantial evidence sufficient
3. most circuits conclude that  D may be convicted even if he only participated in one element of the conspiracy charged, and only played a minor role (2nd, 7th, 11th, and 5th reject application of Reves)
ii. In RICO, Congress authorized the single prosecution of multi-faceted, diversified conspiracy where prior to RICO, it was hard to tie together a single agreement of common objective to highly diverse crimes committed from apparently unrelated individuals. RICO conspiracy essentially prosecutes those that agree to participate directly or indirectly in the affairs of an enterprise by committing two or more predicate crimes… each D does not need to be tied to every act that is prosecuted. 

iii. The RICO statute does not distinguish among participants in a 1962(c) or (d) prosecution, rather all are subject to 20 year maximums, however the continuing criminal enterprise statutes for example, give higher penalties to the kingpin. 

iv. RICO conspiracy may be an end run around the Reves and HJ Inc. Pattern Requirement
1. HYPO: D attorney approaches client for bribe money, he hands it over and the D attorney bribes DA

a. Want to charge the client, but he’s not the operator or manager (Reves) so w/o conspiracy there’s no violation

b. Also, he wouldn’t meet the pattern requirement (HJ Incorporated)
v. Salinas v. United States (1997)
1. Facts: The D is accused of a substantive RICO violation (1962(c))(accepting bribes from a prisoner) and a conspiracy to commit the above acts (1962(d)). He is found not guilty of the substantive offense, but guilty of the conspiracy, and appeals that decision. 

2. Issue: Whether a defendant can be guilty of a conspiracy offense under RICO if he did not commit or agree to commit two of the predicate acts necessary for a RICO prosecution

3. Held:  Can convict under RICO conspiracy if only one predicate act .The court holds that a conspiracy may exist even if a conspirator does not agree to commit or facilitate each and every part of the substantive offense… Therefore in the present case, although Salinas may not have accepted any bribes, it was enough that he adopted the goal of furthering or facilitating the criminal endeavor. 
4. Reasoning: The RICO conspiracy statute is much broader than the general federal conspiracy statute that requires at least one of the conspirators to have committed an act to effect the object of the conspiracy. so long as they agree to pursue the same general criminal purpose then they are liable to the acts of their co-conspirators. 

vi. N.B. Circuit Split:  On whether to apply the Reves “operation and management” test to RICO conspiracy charges as well… 

1. Majority view (2nd, 5th, 7th, 11th) argues that Reves only addresses the extent of conduct necessary to violate a substantive provision of the statute

2. Minority view (3rd & 9th) is that unless Reves is applied to conspiracy RICO charges as well, then Reves becomes irrelevant. 3rd Circuit analyzes 1962(d) in light of Reves and decides that you could only be guilty of conspiracy if you could be found guilty of (a), (b) or (c) and under Reves, in order to be guilty under (c) you’d have to b operating or managing.  So if you’re just conspiring with someone else who’s the operator or manager you wouldn’t be guilty under (c) so you can’t be guilty under (d) for conspiracy.  On the other hand, if you’re conspiring to operate  or manage an enterprise, you’d be liable under (c) and thus liability would attach under (d)

3.  I think 3rd circuit gets it right.  1962(d) just says “conspiring to commit any of the provisions in (a), (b), or (c).  

vii. N.B.   Convictions and cumulative sentences permissible when the same conduct is charged as both a RICO conspiracy and a violation of the general conspiracy statute.  

1. Blockburger Test: 2 seperate crimes: each requires proof of an element that the other does not. 
a. RICO: enterprise + pattern

b. Conspiracy: overt act requirement

viii. Difference btw 1962(d) and federal conspiracy
1.  Federal conspiracy requires the D to overtly act in furtherance of the conspiracy, RICO doesn’t.  May be that Congress wanted to get rid of the overt act requirement.  

2. RICO requires enterprise + pattern

3. Penalty differences—5 for fed, 20 for RICO conspiracy

4. RICO may be just like conspiracy anyway, since it’s aimed at group criminality

5. BEAUTY OF RICO is that you get the big, loose crime networks.  So whereas before, when general conspiracy would fail, now under RICO you can have the same enterprise but not have the same conspiracy

a. US v. Elliot  (5th 1978)  Big criminal network, arson, car theft ring, etc. No conspiracy together b/c they have to agree to an object crime and stolen car peeps didn’t agree to arson and vice versa. No conspiracy together b/c they have to agree to an object crime and stolen car peeps didn’t agree to arson and vice versa. BUT each agreed to participate in an  enterprise by committing two or more of the predicate crimes and that’s how you get them.  

h. Civil Rico § 1964

i. The statute that authorizes this is on page 501… Section 1964… in essence it allows either the attorney general or a private party who has been injured by a RICO violation to institute a civil suit and recover threefold of the damages.

ii. Purpose: Enourage civil suits for cases when prosecutors don’t have the resources to do everything. This gives RICO fuller enforcement.  

1. in that case Court in Sedima got it right, and civil RICO shouldn’t be limited to cases when prosecutors have already secured convictions, b/c that’s counter to the purpose and text of the statute. 

2. Clayton Act  was model for RICO

3. Trial lawyers love this. They’ll police b/c there’s money in the pot. 

iii. Plaintiff’s benefit:
1. treble damages (but no recovery for personal injury, b/c this is punishment & maximum deterrence, not compensatory) 

2. attorney’s fees

3. nationwide service of process

4. extra discovery

iv. How to bring a suit HYPO: you’re representing management in labor dispute, violence on your property throwing rocks through windows, etc., and union leader made comments that may have incited more.( predicate act here: the pattern of racketeering activity, and the enterprise is  your  client’s company.  Hobbs Act extortion and state law extortion = predicate act7

v. Sedima SPRL v. Imrex Co. (1985)
1. Sedima and Imrex are partners in a venture… Sedima alleges that Imrex is inflating the bills and cheating them out of its proceeds by collecting on nonexistent expenses. This is a civil suit under RICO. 

2. Issues: (1) Whether 1964 can be construed to permit private actions against Defendants who have not been convicted of criminal RICO charges; and (2) whether 1964 only allows recovery where there is a “racketeering injury.”

3. 2nd Cir: read 1964(c) to only permit actions against D’s that had already been convicted, and civil recovery only when there’s been a racketeering injury. 

4. Holding: § 1964 does not require that a criminal prosecution must precede a civil RICO prosecution; nor must the P’s allege racketeering injury…  

5. Reasoning:  

a. Issue I: Don’t need criminal conviction b/c  text of statute doesn’t say civil RICO can only follow criminal RICO. Predicate acts only have to be chargeable, indictable and punishable offenses. Given lower standards in civil suits, would be silly to cripple P’s w/ requirement of criminal case first. 

b. Issue 2.  What the hells is a “racketeering injury”? The court determines that the statutory language does not limit the injury to only that caused by a “mobster”, rather the language is very broad…the court has consistently held that RICO is a very broad statute and reaches beyond organized crime, and reaches legitimate businesses as well, therefore there is not a requirement that the injury result from a “mobster”

XVIII. FORFEITURE:

a. Compare to §1964 Civil RICO divestiture:

i.   FF is “better” b/c under divestiture D’s get to sell their property but still keep proceeds of the sale.
b. § 853 (a) Property subject to criminal forfeiture

i. ELEMENTS: 

1. (a)(1)  Proceeds:  any property, constituting or derived from, any proceeds the person obtained, directly or indirectly, as the result of such a violation;

2. (a)(2) Instrumentality:
   any of the person’s property used, or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to commit or to facilitate the commission of, such violation, and

3. (a)(3) Enterprise:
  in the case of a person convicted of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise in violation of section §848, the person shall forfeit, in addition to any property described in paragraph (1) or (2), any of his interest in, claims against, and property or contractual rights affording a source of control over, the continuing criminal enterprise. 

4. PLUS FINE(  in lieu of a fine otherwise authorized, the D who derives profits or proceeds may be fined not more than twice the gross or other proceeds. 

ii. PURPOSE:  criminals shouldn’t profit from crime. 

iii. PROBLEMS: 

1. Only for drug and RICO peeps; hitmen can get fined and no FF

2. Ambiguity in “proceeds”

3. Fines:  Difference btw gross and net profits. Gross is too much. Advantage to this is you don’t have to track proceeds. Disadvantage is govt. has stronger claim to proceeds of crime.

iv. DIBBS ON PROPERTY ​​–  Govt. has to trace to the criminal acts.  
1. Meaning of Property § 853(b) Includes: real property, tangible and intangible property,

2. 3rd Party transfers  § 853 (c) ( title vests in govt. on commission of the acts giving rise to the FF. 

3. Rebuttable presumption § 853 (d) ( any property of D convicted under FF felony is subject to FF is the govt establishes by preponderance of the evidence that (1) acquired during period of violation or reasonable time after AND (2) there’s no likely source for such property other than the violation

4. Liberal construction 853(o) ( Court will liberally construe these sections to effectuate its remedial purposes

5. Forfeiture of substitute property 853(p) ( if as a result of any act or omission of D because of the following…court shall order ff of any other property of the D up to the value of the property described in (1) through (5) here

a. can’t be located

b. has been transferred or sold to 3rd party

c. has been placed beyond jurisdiction of the Ct

d. has been substantially diminished in value

e. has been  commingled w/ other property that can’t be divided w/o difficulty

v. “PROPERTY”
1. US v. Wilton Manors  (11th 1999)
a. facts: D’ sold cocaine out of his home. it was divided in two lots, 

b. Issue: how much does D have to ff if he’s used  some  of his property in violation?

i. Govt: “property” should be determined by reference to the deed used in conveyance

ii. Def: look at descriptive references of property, local land references

iii. Court: both are arbitrary

c. Held:  Opts for functional approach.  “property” defined in CBC basis. Look at the character of the land, and see if it’s all the same. 

d. N.B.  no distinction in “property” definition in civil or criminal forfeiture. BUT  Civil Asset Forfeiture Reform Act of 2000 requires that govt. prove  a substantial connection btw the crime and the property to be ff on a facilitation theory. 

vi. Facilitated Commission Test: Instrumentalities
1.  US v. Smith (6th 1992) D and his wife got 4 conveyances of property for 1 farm, when divorced wife did 1 quitclaim deed to husband, issue was whether he’d gotten it in 1 deed or 

a. Ct determined after looking at state property law for guidance, that they were 4 separate tracts. BUT to see which ones were forfeitable, asked which had facilitated the commission of the offense. 

b. All pot on tract 1 BUT tract 4 helped to conceal it, so tract 4  subject to FF b/c it facilitated commission.  

2. US v. Rivera ( 11th Cir. 1989) D used 1/4 horse ranch as front for heroin trafficking. Govt. got the 27 horses on theory they facilitated drug offenses. 

3. US v. Rogers (1st Cir. 1996)  Bought lots of pot, asked supplier for credit and offered a diamond and his trailer as collateral.  They were subject to FF b/c they facilitated criminal K. 

4. Money laundering:  FF clean money b/c it helps hide the dirty money

vii. SCOPE of RICO Forfeiture
1. exclusively criminal remedy

2. 1963(a)(2) provides FF of “any interest” in “any enterprise” which D has established, operated, controlled, conducted, or participated in the conduct of in violation of § 1962.  

3. US v. Busher (9th 1987) not just the tainted assets but ENTIRE interest in the enterprise. 

4. Drexel Burnham Lambert case: D charged w/ securities fraud. Sought trial on the merits, so no guilty plea.  Then DA, Guiliani, filed RICO charges to freeze assets, D’s afraid of going out of business like another firm had before them under asset freeze, so the D’s entered plea agreement paying $650 million to feds and to fire VP.  Too much leverage for govt?

c. Civil (§881(a)(6) vs. criminal forfeiture (§853).

i. civil forfeiture—demands an “ownership” interest in forfeited property before the exception will apply; n.b. exception is only for owners and isn’t proper to use civil FF cases in criminal context, because criminal FF different requirements. US v. Campos (6th 1998)

d. criminal forfeiture—requires that a petitioning party have a particular defined “interest” or that a petitioner be a bona fide purchaser.

e. Constitutionality of Civil and Criminal Forfeiture
i. Criminal forfeiture : governed by the 8th amendments Excessive Fines Clause, b/c it’s not punishment or confinement so not cruel or unusual.   US v. Alexander (1993) 

ii. Constitutional measure of excessiveness = Gross Proportionality Test
1. US v. BAJAKAJIAN  (1998)
a. D didn’t disclose $357,000.Lied to customs officials who told them they were required to report. Statute required the FF of entire amount, but Ct said that big of a FF would violated 8th’s prohibition of excessive fines.

b. Rule: 8th amendment limits govt’s power to impose excessive payments “as punishment for offense”.  Gross Proportionality Test: forfeiture must bear relationship to the gravity of the offense it’s designed to punish. 

c. Holding: punitive FF violates 8th if grossly disproportionate to gravity of the offense.

i. (  LIMITATION (:  gross proportionality test only applies if the FF is found to be punitive rather than remedial.  (but it can be punishment in civil and criminal cases both
) 

d. Reasoning: this is punishment. 

i. Imposed at culmination of criminal proceeding, requires conviction of felony, can’t be imposed on innocent owner

ii.  Doesn’t  serve remedial purposes b/c the govt. hasn’t lost anything just trying to deter illicit movements of cash. 

iii. This  isn’t  an instrumentality b/c this is  an in personam action brought against D not the cash. 

e. Issue: how proportional does it have to be? 

i. Look at text and history (analogy to gross proportionality standard under Cruel & Unusual Punishment) 

ii. Look at gravity (just a reporting offense)

iii. Sentencing guidelines say 5K is good. 

f. Dissent:  Kennedy,  Scalia & O’Connor

i. Statute fixes the amount of the fine = amount forfeited.  Defer to congress

ii. Civil  ff here, b/c it’s remedial. Emerald Stones held its reimbursement tot he Govt for investigation and enforcement expenses. 

iii. Haven’t demonstrated how this is excessive

2. Gross Proportionality Test after Bajakajain:  3 factors (1) culpability of the D (2) seriousness of D’s actions, (3) ratio of the size of the FF to the fine suggested by the sentencing guidelines

a. Truck for first time hooker solicitation excessive (cheap hooker or new truck?)

b. Jet for drugs okay (okay)

c. YACHT when owner suspects peeps using it for drugs and does nothing – not excessive b/c serious offense + duty to take precautions

f. Forfeiture and DOUBLE JEOPARDY / SUCCESSIVE PROCEEDINGS
i. US v. URSERY (1996):  limits Austin  to only applying to categories for excessive fines clause, not Double Jeopardy clause. When DJ comes up, traditional form of civil ff is important, b/c then it can be successive proceeding

1. two part test to check for DJ violation:

a. whether Congress intended proceedings to be civil or criminal

b. whether the proceedings under these statutes were so punitive in fact that they couldn’t be viewed as civil despite congress’ intent. Format won’t be conclusive

2. Civil FF in drug transaction serves  non-punitive goals b/c

a. Encourages peeps to keep track of property & prevent illegal use (um, that’s deterrence, trying to influence conduct)

b. No scienter requirement. 

g. Difference btw  Austin  and  Ursery of whether ff counts as punitive
i. Austin can’t reasonably be considered anything but punitive.  Ursery says the same thing in Step 2.

ii. Austin  threshold is if its partially punishment, then Excessive Fines applies.   Ursery requires pure punitive motive.

h. Why 2 constitutional tests for what qualifies as punishment? One for Excessive Fines and one for Double Jeopardy?

i. Saving someone from DJ isn’t as important as saving someone from Excessive Punishment. 
ii. Hey. Framers of the constitution liked both of these. 

iii. Ursery Court makes originalist argument for its view that civil in rem should be treated as civil rather than criminal.

1. Why allow Prosecution and then civil ff?  B/c we always have. Long history of this

iv. Difference btw civil and criminal remedies
1. Traditional test is goals/ remedies. 
a. Civil  commitment is to protect the public. 
i. Compensatory purposes
ii. Remedial purposes
b. Criminal purpose 

i. Retribution

ii. Deterrence

2. Critique test:
a. Isn’t purpose of TORT system to encourage efficient behavior vs. inefficient behavior? But we don’t call torts criminal.

b. Retributive purpose isn’t necessary for criminal punishment:  lots of peeps have renounced retribution—does that mean criminal code is civil now b/c it’s forward looking?

3. Distinction faded b/c of forward-looking consequentialist view of the law. 
a. See notes. 

i. BFP exception § 853(n)(6)(B)—

i. Purpose of the exception is not to protect all innocent 3rd parties, must be a BFP.  if petitioner falls outside the exception for BFP’s then must petition to the AG for relief. 

1. US v. BCCI/AMEX (D.D.C 1997). 
a. Facts: BCCI owed millions to AMEX. Had to FF money, so AMEXexercised right under NY law to set off the debt and satisfy the obligation.  Turned over the rest of the money.  Later, BCCI indicted for RICO. Govt says AMEX has to turn it over.  AMEX says we made set off b/f Govt and so (1) we vested first and (2) we’re BFPs. 

b. Vesting Issue/Rule:  RELATION BACK PROVISION. 18 USC 1963(l)(6) (like the 853(c) drug FF statute)( relevant time is time of commission of acts that gave rise to FF of the property

i. Held: vested in Govt b/c the set off happened after the commission of FF acts. 

c. BFP Issue/Rule.  BFP  is s/o who at the time of the purchase was  without cause  to believe that the property was subject to forfeiture under this section. 

i. held:  BFP  only applies to purchases of tangible property.  AMEX isn’t BFP b/c all they had was K right, & the set off wasn’t a purchase.  AMEX only gets a cause of action out of the breach and a right of set off( purchase of these legal rights isn’t “purchase” for purposes of BFP provision. 

1. PLUS even if Bank was BFP b/c of tangible property right, still objective reasonableness standard, they can’t say they didn’t have cause to believe it was subject to FF. 

2. Reckmeyer (4th Cir. 1987)
a. Even though BCCI said creditors can’t be BFP b/c they didn’t acquire an interest in the property, just a contractual debt, Court here concluded that Congress intended unsecured creditors to  recover b/c strict construction of statute could lead to erroneous deprivations of property (DP issue).  So unsecured creditors can recover as long as:

i. Dealt at arms length

ii. No notice of criminal activity

b. Held standing to all creditors to rebut presumption of forfeitability, punish D’s w/o hurting BFP’s.  

c. Liberal construction of BFP to include D in an arms’ length transaction

3. Calero-Toledo v. Pearson Yacht Leasing (1974)
a.  FF not unconstitutional b/c it’s applied to innocent parties. No defense to innocent owner of leased vessel in pot seizure. This encourages peeps to exercise greater care in transferring possession of their property. 

b. Rule: if innocent owner “should have known” then have to show that you “did what was reasonably could be expected to prevent the violation” 

4. Bennis v. Michigan hubbie has sex with hooker in car, wife loses her share too…

5. US v. Lavin (3rd 1991)( D convicted of drug trafficking, property forfeited.  WMOT sought recovery from portion of money that D had embezzled, but since government’s “legal interest” in the property was superior by 3 years, WMOT not eligible for 853(n) exception and so must rely on equitable argument to the AG that as a victim of embezzlement should be entitled to recover some of its losses from D’s property.;  

j. § 881(a)(7) can seize and acquire by forfeiture any real property, including any right, title and interest…in the whole of any lot or tract of land…, which is used, or intended to be used, in any manner or part, to commit or to facilitate the commission of a violation of a federal narcotics offense punishable by prison term of more than one year.

i. US v. Two Parcels of Property located at 19 and 25 Castle Street  (2nd 1994)
1. FACTS: 

a. This is a civil forfeiture action, couldn’t have used criminal forfeiture because the criminals had never owned the property.  The owners of the property had never committed any crime, but their adult children had used the property to sell and use drugs. The parents didn’t know it was being used to distribute narcotics, but b/c their kids all users they knew it was being used in violation of 844…turns on whether they consented to the illegal use of the residence.  

2. ISSUE: did the parents fall under the innocent owner provision of the civil forfeiture exception?

3. Govt. burden in civil forfeiture:

a.  must show property forfeitable –establish “reasonable grounds, rising above the level os mere suspicion, to believe that certain property is subject to FF.” Then burden shifts to claimant opposing FF. 

4. Innocent owner defense: 

a. must prove by preponderance that either (1) narcotics activity occurred w/o their knowledge or (2) the illegal use of the property, if they had knowledge, was without his knowledge or consent.  
i. Consent= failure to take all reasonable steps to prevent illicit use of premises once one acquires knowledge of that use.

ii. To demonstrate lack of consent: Claimant who has knowledge of prohibited activity must prove that he did “all that reasonably could be expected to prevent the illegal activity once he learned of it.”

5. HOLDING: failed to undertake EVERY reasonable means of preventing narcotics activity 

a. because 1) didn’t conduct their own searches 2) didn’t ask for police intervention at their own residence (but did for neighborhood) 3) and didn’t give kids ultimatum. 

k. Civil Asset Forfeiture Reform Act of 2000 (p.926)
i. Purpose: help some innocent owners

ii. Innocent owner: is one who didn’t know of the conduct giving rise to forfeiture OR did all that reasonably could be expected under the circumstances to terminate illegal use of property.

iii. Safe harbor?: timely notice to law enforcement agency and revoked or made good faith attempt to revoke permission.

iv. Danger: not required to do anything if that would put someone other than the criminal in danger.

v. Homestead exemption: person can still fit under the bona fide purchaser exemption of innocent owners acquired after bad conduct even if they didn’t provide value if it’s primary residence, necessary to maintain reasonable shelter, property not traceable to proceeds of crime, claimant acquired interest through marriage, divorce, legal separation, inheritence, or probate.

vi. None of this would have helped the poor Parents above.

l. Forfeiture of Attorney’s Fees
i. Caplin & Drysdale v. US (1989 p. 833)

1. Facts: D pled guilty on drug kingpin charges, law firm claimed its legal fees exempt from FF. 

2. Held: no 6th amendment claim (right to counsel of choice) b/c 6th only gives you right to spend your  own  money on counsel, not someone else’s. and FF money is Uncle Sam’s. 

3. Reasoning:

a. Govt’s legitimate interest: funds support law enforcement

b. Govt. interest in  all  FF is to return to rightful owners

c. Legis. purpose was to lessen power of RICO peeps, this includes private counsel

4. Dissent: 

a. Negative practical consequences—use of FF will decimate the criminal defense bar, socialize the whole system.  

b. Undermines trust in lawyers, imbalance in equality btw govt. and D’s. 

c. Need counsel independent from govt.  

d. D’s may not qualify as “indigent” under Criminal Justice Act!

e. Attorney conflict b/c will want to stay just ignorant enough to remain BFP, will weaken investigation into D’s case

f. FF is govt. exercising power over private attorneys

5. Discussion
a.  Conflict of interest b/c FF makes fee contingent! 

b. SCt says ethics different from constitutionality. And fees are  often  dependent on whether you win or lose at trial.  

c. Worry about contingent fees: when lawyer offered bargain that insures payment of a fee that he might otherwise lose: strong personal interest in getting client to accept bargain. Don’t want Prosecution determining whether L gets paid

ii. US. v. Monsato (1989)   DCt can authorize pretrial order freezing assets in a Ds possession even where D wants to use them to pay an attorney 

1. two part test to determine whether there’s a  hearing. 

2. Govt. doesn’t like preponderance standard, though, b/c they basically have to tip D’s off about their strategy

iii. US Attorney’s Manual
1.  careful review & uniform application when applying 3rd party FF to attorney’s fees. 

iv. Criminal Resource Manual
1.  Assets transferred to an attorney as payment for legal fees in criminal matter may be FF where “reasonable grounds to believe that the attorney had actual knowledge that the asset was subject to FF  at the time of the transfer. 

a. Reasonable grounds must be based on facts and information other than compelled disclosures of confidential communications made during the course of representation.

b. Actual knowledge that  that  asset FF, not merely some of the Client’s assets are or might be subject to FF. Inference if (1) govt asserted that’s subject to FF or (2) particular asset is product of criminal conduct. 

2. if transferred as payment for civil, allow FF is attorney knew or “had reasonable cause to know” subject to FF at time of transfer. 

XIX. FEDERAL FALSE STATEMENT
a. 18 US § 1001
i. paradigmatic case in mind: old false statement statutes were about cheating the govt. out of something.  

ii. Ct finds that it either has to limit by FIAT or not limit this one at all.  
iii. Like perjury, but no oath requirement and no official proceeding requirement
iv. ELEMENTS (US v. Lutz 6th 1998)

1. D made a statement

2. Statement is false or fraudulent

3. Statement is material 

a. Has natural tendency to influence or is capable of influencing the federal agency

4. D made the statement knowingly and willfully

5. Statement pertained to an activity w/in the jurisdiction of a federal agency

a. no requirement that the statements be made directly to or even be received by a federal department…false statements made within  any  matter w/in the agency’s jurisdiction are w/in scope of §1000. 
v. Limitations under § 1001 
1.  (b) doesn’t apply to parties to judicial proceeding, their counsel or judges
2. (c) w/ legislative branch only applies to 
a. (1) administrative matters, etc. 

b.  (2) investigation or review conducted by committees, commissions, etc.

b. US v. LUTZ (6th Cir. 1998)
i. FACTS: 

1. HUD authorized mortgage originator. When she filled out a form on initial-interviews always said she’d done that, but didn’t really.   These forms went to the lender bank….bank decides if applicant eligible, send it  back to her and she sends a final package to HUD for closing.  Convicted under 1001 for certifying she’d met w/ these interviewed peeps.

ii. Broad Holding
1. enough that D make false statement in  any  matter w/in jurisdiction of the agency. No implicit requirement that the false statement be made directly to or received by the federal department or agency.

2. materiality requirement: statement is material if it has a natural tendency to influence

c. After  Lutz
i. US v. Gaudin (1995) materiality issue goes to the jury
ii. Purpose of “materiality requirement”
1. insure that the reach of 1001 is confined to reasonable bounds and not reach trivial falsehoods (US v. Gafcyczk 11th 1998)
2. D made statements to agents and they knew he was lying. Fact that statement wasn’t relied on is irrelevant, b/c standard is “natural tendency to influence” (US v. Sarihifard 4th 1998)
3. Impossibility of agency influence is irrelevant b/c test is intrinsic capability of the false statement itself ( US v. Valdez 9th 1979)
iii. Any  matter w/in jurisdiction of federal agency?
1. federal oversight all over the place.  
2. Circuit split on scope : false applications to the state agency’s for unemployment benefits.  Violate 1001 when these are state agencies?
a. State agencies get grants from fed. for administrative expenses: some Cts say that’s enough. 9th Circuit says not enough: need direct relationship btw false statement and an authorized function of a federal agency.  11th circuit: “inappropriate” for Dept. of labor to investigate false statements on state applications for unemployment 
d. US v. Yermian (1984) p.585: (dude lied on security questionnaire?)  
i. Issue: is Govt required to prove the lie was made w/ actual knowledge of federal jurisdiction?
ii. HELD: text of the statute doesn’t require proof of actual knowledgeof federal agency jurisdiction 
1. look to grammatical structure of the statutes; knowingly and willfully modifies false statement, etc.
iii. BUT SEE (US v. Montemayor 5th Cir. 1983) a year before Yermian
1. Ct held that statement to state agency can constitute a violation of § 1001 whether or not the D knoew of the statement’s ultimate federal purpose. SUGGESTED, however, that the D’s knowledge of federal involvement might be relevant to the determination whether the statement was  within the jurisdiction  of a federal agency, since “jurisdiction” merely incorporates Congress’ intent  that the statute apply  whenever false statements would result in the perversion of the authorized function of a federal dept. or agency
2. when statement isn’t submitted directly to fed agency, knowledge may be one circumstance to consider threat of statement to the federal function
iv. US v. Hildebrandt (8th 1992)

1. old farmer deducted payments he thought peeps owed, like creditors, lenders, etc. who’d foreclosed on him.  HELD: not necessary that the D act w/ the intent to deceive the US or have actual knowledge that the statement was made w/in a federal agency’s jurisdiction.” 
e. TENSION btw Lutz and Yermian? seems like if Lutz stresses materiality, when you’re making your false statement it’s not “knowingly false” in sense required by the statute, b/c you don’t think it has any natural tendency to influence since you don’t have a clue you’re in federal jurisdiction. 
f. LIMITATIONS ACCORDING TO AGENCY or AGENCY FUNCTION
i. US v. Rodgers  (1984)
1. D volunteered false info to FBI and SS…argued that 1001 didn’t cover false statements to agencies.

2. ISSUE: What if it’s just an investigating agency?
a. DCt thought it was bound by an 8th Cir. Decision that said “within the jurisdiction” referred only to “the power to make final or binding determinations”( wanted to go w/ narrow interpretation of the statute.  
3. HELD:  SCt says “jurisdiction” not defined in the statute, so give it its natural meaning.  = “power to exercise authority in a situation”
ii. Hubbard v. US (1995)
1.  Fed Ct. isn’t “agency”, 1001 doesn’t apply to Court proceedings
g. LIMITATIONS ON THE TYPE OF STATEMENT
i. BROGAN v. UNITED STATES (1998):
1.  federal agents came  to  the D. they asked if he’d ever gotten ccash/gifts from peeps working for the union. He said “no.” agents knew he was lying.
2. Issue Exculpatory No.  Does 1001 apply to a denial of wrongdoing? 
3. HELD: Text says “any” false statement, and “no” count!
4. Reasoning: 
a. “willfully” maybe you didn’t mean to lie, it was just a denial of wrongdoing.
b. “statement”  (  “no” doesn’t have the narrative quality we usually mean when we say statement.  By statement we want it to mean more than a simple reply…
c. doesn’t  matter if statement is ambiguous, can still say that D is making false statement OR misrepresentation.

d. 5th amendment:  right to say not guilty  

5. STEVEN’S DISSENT IN BROGAN
a. Pointed to “entrapment” defense, that was dreamt up by Courts as matter of statutory interpretation. No fair for feds to create a crime, they’re just supposed to suppress crimes.  If crime wouldn’t have happened w/o the officer’s inducement, then there’s an exception for entrapment cases, even if the statute covers the D’s conduct. 

b. Majority’s response:  One thing to acknowledge background principles of assumed legislative intent, that’s okay.  Quite another thing to espouse broad proposition that criminal statutes don’t have to be read as broadly as their written, but are instead subject to case-by case exceptions.

c.  Response to this: BUT WAIT:  when danger that’s equally applicable to all statutes, like entrapment, then we’ll go with entrapment exception.   But in §1001 it’s more dangerous that feds will create an offense, so shouldn’t we create an exception?  Then if Congress wants to it can amend the statute to indicate contrary intent.If we can create entrapment defense, we can create exculpatory no exception.

6. Ginsburg Concurrence:

a. Language of the statute is clear, so no exculpatory no. BUT it’s doubtful congress meant to cast their net this wide, sure hope they’ll take another look. 

b. < This “flag it for them” approach raises skeptical eyebrows in most intelligent people> 

ii. Two aspects to exculpatory no doctrine
1. Elaborateness of the D’s statement: “no” okay but elaborate “no” not okay. 
2.  Whether merely defensive or whether affirmatively designed to do something more than avoid admitting a crime.
3. Elaborate “no” vs. simple “No”   ( Brogan  court didn’t distinguish btw these, but it should have.  Actively trying to mislead the authorities is different.
4. BASIS FOR EXCULPATORY “NO” : 
a. Even D in Brogan recognizes that there’s no statutory w/ “exculpatory no” exception.  

b. 9th Circuit says “inconsistent w/ the spirit of the statute, even if the words of statute literally cover this”( Blackstone allows doctor to treat s/o with a stab wound even where the statute says “no blood letting on the streets”.  Courts make exceptions to the statutes all the time.

c. Still, doesn’t seem like this is what Congress had in mind.  Suppose Court writes an opinion that Congress only mean to cover lies  to federal agencies, not lies  by  federal agencies. So in light of Congress’ limited purpose it could decline to endorse the broad reading of the statute. This would be legitimate.  So why doesn’t this work for exculpatory “no” doctrine?
d. Legit. for court to say language may cover this, but we’re reading an exception in to it. Congress can come back and tell the court something different.
iii. PURPOSE of § 1001 
1. deter peeps from lying to federal agents. If that were  really  the case then feds would advise peeps at the outset of an interview about § 1001.
iv. PRACTICE  of § 1001 
1.  Used to manufacture crimes.  Induce D’s to lie about some elements of the crime, when cops can’t get D on some other element.  Even when govt.  can  prove underlying crime, a §1001 conviction adds to severity of punishment under sentencing guidelines.
h. DOUBLE COUNTING W/ REPORTING VIOLATIONS
i. US v. WOODWARD (1985) p. 608
1. D asked if carrying more than $5000 in currency into US. convicted of 2 crimes, separate consecutive sentences imposed.  Violation of §1001 and willful failure to report the currency.
2. SCt Ct. said double punishment okay, overturned 9th Circuit’s application of Blockburger test. Said 1001 requires “trick, scheme or device” § 1058 could be violated without those.  And currency statute allows for omissions, whereas 1001 doesn’t. 
3. DISCUSSION: wait. “concealing or covering up” through “trick”, then someone who fails to disclose seems to look just like someone who’s concealing through a trick.
i. 1001 and Other Crimes consecutive sentences imposed.  
i. Violation of §1001 and willful failure to report the currency.
1. SCt Ct. said double punishment okay, overturned 9th Circuit’s application of Blockburger test. Said 1001 requires “trick, scheme or device” § 1058 could be violated without those.  And currency statute allows for omissions, whereas 1001 doesn’t. 
2. DISCUSSION: wait. “concealing or covering up” through “trick”, then someone who fails to disclose seems to look just like someone who’s concealing through a trick. 
II. Obstruction of Justice
a. Interference w/ Witnesses
i. Statutes 
1. § 1503  influencing or injuring officer or juror generally
a. “whoever corruptly endeavors to influence an officer of any court in the discharge of his duty shall be punished”
b. forbids injury to grand or petit jurors b/c of the verdict
c. omnibus clause catch all, prohibits persons from endeavoring to influence, obstruct, or impede the due administration of justice. 
d. N.B.  for all of these a proceeding must be pending. 
2. §1505: obstruction of proceedings before departments, agencies and committees
a. proceeding must be pending
3. § 1510 obstruction of criminal investigation
4. § 1512 tampering w/ witness, victim or informant
a. 1515(e) says an official proceeding need not be pending for this section
5. § 1515 definitions for certain provisions
ii. Cases

1. US v. AGUILAR (1995)

a. Issue: § 1503 apply to false statements made to grand jury W’s? 
b. Facts: Tipped off W about grand jury investigation 
c. 9th Cir: wasn’t a pending judicial proceeding b/c the grand jury hadn’t authorized an investigatio yet 2) uttering false statements doesn’t necessarily “corruptly influence” 
d. HELD  false statements to an investigator that  may or may not  testify isn’t enough for § 1503. 
e. Reasoning
i. Pettibone rule requires that D needs notice that justice was being administered
ii. Nexus requirement: act must have relationship in time, causation or logic with the judicial proceedings.  Endeavor must have the “natural and probable effect” of interefering w/ the due administration of justice.   Doesn’t have to be successful, since endeavor suffices. 
f. Scalia’s dissent: “endeavor” possible even when chances of success are low. As long as you tried, why should courts care that you weren’t likely to succeed?
2. Discussion:

a. We think Court Screwed up NEXUS standard: Do we think D knew his lies were likely to affect a grand jury proceeding?  (  Judge knew the investigation was pending and grand jury was meeting, then you’re pretty sure that your statements are likely to reach a grand jury…. Especially if you’re a judge.  

b. Omnibus Clause of §1503 “endeavors to impede due administration of justice” 

i.  Have to obstruct some pending  judicial proceeding.  P. 624 US v. Pettibone (1893) , if D lacks knowledge that his actions are likely to affect the judicial proceedings, he lacks the requisite intent to obstruct.  Have to know that justice is being administered before you can try to impede its due administration.  
ii. Basis for this reading of Omnibus Clause:  The statute is really long, and everything  in it except Omnibus clause has something to do w/ pending judicial proceedings. So Pettibone court reads the omnibus clause in light of those considerations.
c. Doesn’t mean you can do anything you want.  
i. Pettibone says D not sufficiently charged unless he had notice that justice was being administered in such court.  That doesn’t mean that just b/c you know DA is going to charge tomorrow you can do whatever you want.
ii. D’s can be convicted of violating §1503 even though no judicial proceeding actually pending at the time of his actions. Vaghela 11th Circuit D’s charged w/ conspiring to violate §1503.  as long as they intended to obstruct processes of a specific judicial proceeding, that’s enough.
XX. Criminal Civil Rights Violations

a. Two principle Statutes 

i. 18 USC 241 – Conspiracy against Rights

1. Two or more persons conspire against the free exercise or enjoyment of any right or privilege secured to him in the US Constitution or laws of the US

2. The maximum penalty is 10 years; or if death, kidnapping, or any sexual crime, then the maximum is life

ii. 18 USC 242 – Deprivation of rights under color of law

1. If a person acts under the color of law to deprive any rights, privileges, or immunities secured or protected by the Constitution or laws of the US

2. The maximum penalty is one year; or there is a 10 year maximum if there is bodily injury, weapons, or explosive/fire threatened or used; or if there is death, kidnapping, or any sexual crime then it is life

b. Elements Sections 241 and 242

i. Specific Intent

1. United States v. Ehrlichman

a. Facts: The “Special Investigations” unit of the White House, which E was the general supervisor, conducted an illegal search and seizure of a Dr. Fielding’s office. E was convicted of a 241 violation. 

b. Issue: What constitutes a “good faith” defense to the specific intent of 241?

c. The offender must act with a specific intent to interfere with the federal rights in question… generally there is no requirement that the conspirator know those acts to be unlawful; a mistake as to the legality of the prohibited activity therefore is no defense. 

d. The Screws case imposed a two part test for specific intent:

i. Is the constitutional right at issue clearly delineated and plainly applicable under the circumstance of the case? If the trial concludes that it is then, the jury is asked,

ii. Did the defendant commit the act in question with the particular purpose of depriving the citizen victim of his enjoyment of the interests protected by that federal right?

e. The court held that the fourth amendment’s right to be free from search and seizure is clearly delineated, and in this case they performed the search without a warrant, so they “willfully” deprived him of his constitutionally protected rights, so they had a specific intent. 

ii. Under the Color of Law

1. Screws v. United States
a. Facts: Screws was a police officer, who arrested a black person, and beat him to death. He had a personal grudge with this man. He was found guilty of violating 242; depriving the man of the right to life, and due process of law. 

b. Issue: Whether Screws was acting under the “color of law”?

c. The court holds that: “Misuse or power, possessed by virtue of state law and made possible only because the wrongdoer is clothed with the authority of state law, is action taken under the color of state law.” In this case, Screws had acted under his official duties when he arrested the man, so he acted under the color of law. 

2. United States v. Tarpley
a. Officer found a person having an affair with his wife, so he beat him up, placed his service revolver in the man’s mouth, and told him several times that he was an officer so he could get away with murder… even though this was undoubtedly motivated by a personal grudge, Tarpley used his status as an officer to intimidate and assault this man, therefore he acted under the ‘color of law’

iii. The deprivation of “rights, privileges or immunities secured by the constitution or by the laws of the US.”

1. United States v. Lanier
a. Facts: Lanier is a judge, who used his power to sexually assault several women. He was found guilty of several violations of 242 for depriving the victims of the right to be free from willful sexual assault. 

b. Issue: What is the requisite standard for determining whether particular conduct falls within the range of criminal liability under Section 242

c. The court sets the standard as: “if in the light of pre-existing law the unlawfulness [under the Constitution is] apparent,” then the fair warning is satisfied. 

d. There are three concerns about fair warning of a statute

i. The vagueness doctrine bars enforcement of a statute that a reasonable person must guess at its meaning and differ as to its application. 

ii. The canon of strict construction of criminal statutes (rule of lenity) require any ambiguity to be resolved in favor of the defendant

iii. Due process bars courts from applying a novel construction of a criminal statute to conduct that neither the statute nor any prior judicial decision has fairly disclosed to be within its scope

e. The lower court felt that the test ought to be whether a prior judicial decision has recognized the right that the defendant has allegedly deprived the plaintiff of (in this case the right to be free of sexual assault), and then there must be a case with a similar factual scenario prior to the present case… since the Supreme Court struck this test down for the one set out above, the court remands. 

c. Special Uses of 241, 242

i. Excessive Force in the course of arrest: United States v. Schatzle
1. Facts: S was a secret service officer, who beat a person after he ran in front of a motorcade with Senator Gore (who was running for VP at that time). He subsequently arrested the individual. He was charged with a 242 violation, the allegation was that he used excessive force in his arrest.

2. Issue: What is the standard for excessive force?

3. The court holds that the use of excessive force in an arrest is a violation of  a person’s fourth amendment right to be free from seizures, so the fourth amendment’s reasonableness test should be employed. The Supreme Court held that the standard is whether S was reasonable in light of the particular situation and dangers facing S at the time he encountered the individual. 

ii. Official Corruption or other Criminality: United States v. Senak
1. Facts: S was a public defender who told his clients that unless they paid him an extra premium, he would give them inferior legal services, and they would go to jail. He was found guilty of 242 because they contended that he acted under the color of the law and deprived them of their right to property.

2. Issue: Whether S acted under the color of law and deprived them of their property?

3. The court holds that he indeed did act under the color of law, since he was appointed by the court, he had an official position as public defender, so he acted under the color of law. This allowed him to deprive his clients of property, namely their money… the concurrence agrees with the conviction, however feels that the indictment would have been better if it had focused on the sixth amendment’s right to adequate representation instead of the deprivation of property. 

iii. Attacks on Federal Witnesses: United States v. Dinome
1. Facts: Two mobsters killed a person who had information concerning the mobsters involvement in a stolen car ring. The mobsters are charged with a 241 violation; violating the man’s right to be a federal witness. 

2. Issue: Whether there is a right to be a federally protected witness?

3. The court does seem to recognize this right to be a federal witness (Matt says that this is not based in the constitution, rather it is derived from the obstruction of justice statutes); since it can be shown that the mobsters knew that murder is illegal, knew the guy possessed information regarding their criminality, and took action specifically to interfere with this man heading to the authorities, then they had the specific intent required for the 241 violation. 

d. Federally Protected Activities: 18 USC  245 (Statute on page 563-5)

i. United States v. Bledsoe
1. Facts: The Defendant beat and killed a black person in a state park. The state brought a prosecution under 245, claiming that he was motivated by race… the only reason why this was allowed in federal courts is because it occurred in a state park… 245(b)(2)(B)

2. Issue: Whether the jury instructions regarding the motivation for the crime were adequate?

3. The court holds that the jury instructions were adequate, since they instructed the jury that the prosecution must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant was motivated by race… a reasonable jury could have found that to be the case because the prosecution had produced evidence to demonstrate that. 

4. Mrs. Z says that this is one of the broadest statutes that she has ever seen, and allows a lot of crimes to be prosecuted federally. 

XXI. Federal Sentencing Guidelines

a. The Sentencing Commission:

i. Seven members, three of whom are federal judges.

ii. No more than four members of the same party.

iii. Created as part of the judicial branch.

iv. HOWEVER ( the members of the Sentencing Commission are appointed BY POLITICIANS.  It is necessarily a political appointment.  This is one reason why the sentencing guidelines are unlikely to change substantially are be abandoned.  It is VERY unlikely that anyone who feels that way would make it on to the Commission in the first place.

b. Constitutional Issues

i. Over 200 district courts originally declared the sentencing guidelines as unconditional.

ii. Art 1 §1 gives legislature power to make laws.

iii. Two main constitutional issues:

1. Did Congress delegate excessive power in violation of Art 1 § 1?

a. Supreme Court held that as long as there were clear guidelines and standards spelled out by Congress in delegating, there is no excessive delegation.

2. Separation of powers:

a. Since judges are sitting on the commission, constitutional concern that they are given legislative powers, which would be unconstitutional.

c. How the Guidelines Work

i. Seven Step Process (p. 702-704):

1. Determine the BASE OFFENSE LEVEL

a. Sentencing Commission has created generic guidelines that group offenses by offense type.

b. Ranked according from severity from 4 to 43.

2. Examine the SPECIFIC OFFENSE CHARACTERISTICS

a. Once base offense has been determined, specific offense characteristics help establish the seriousness of the offense.

b. For example, once robbery has been established as the base offense, 3-level increase if firearms was involved, 5-level increase if firearm was discharged, etc.

3. CHAPTER THREE ADJUSTMENTS

a. Chapter Three adjustments act to further individualize the sentence.

b. Takes into account factors like vulnerability of the victim, whether victim was law enforcement officer, etc.

4. Counting MULTIPLE COUNTS

a. The tension lies in the balancing of conduct that causes several harms, but does not necessarily warrant a sentence that multiplies the sentence for one harm by the number actually harmed.

b. Guidelines resolve this tension by directing incremental increases for each offense by raising the base offense level appropriately.

5. ACCEPTANCE OF RESPONSIBILITY

a. If defendant “demonstrates a recognition and affirmative acceptance of personal responsibility for his criminal conduct,” the sentencing court may reduce the base level by two levels.

6. Assessing CRIMINAL HISTORY

7. Determining APPLICABLE SENTENCE RANGE

d. Plea Bargaining

i. Win-win: 

1. Allows government to get out of cases early and prosecute other cases.  

2. Allows defendant to usually get a lighter sentence.


ii. Charge bargain vs. sentence bargain:

1. Charge bargain is more powerful.  With sentence bargain, it is pretty much a recommendation and/or guideline application.  In a charge bargain, the prosecutor is able to determine what base offense level to start with in the first place.

2. There are some situations where the prosecutor can choose a charge that has a statutory cap on prison terms that will trump the sentencing guidelines.  In these situations, you all of a sudden have a situation where the most insulated, least publicly accountable person (prosecutor) is picking the charge and number of charges.

e. Downward Departures ad §5K1.1

i. § 5K1.1 ( biggest tool for the defendant.  If a defendant is a helpful witness, he can get a downward departure in base offense level.  

ii. §5K1.1 can only be made by the government.  This can lead to a problem where the most culpable people are given the biggest breaks.  The most culpable people know the most, and can help out the most.  Further, there is a race to the courthouse, because the first person who bargains has the best information.

f. Mistretta v. United States
i. The Supreme Court took the case directly from the trial court and issue an 8 to 1 decision upholding the Sentencing Guidelines.

ii. Constitutional challenge: Article 1 Section 1 challenge arguing that the delegated powers to a Sentencing Commission violated the non-delegation doctrine, and conflicted with the separation of powers.

iii. The Supreme Court upheld the Guidelines based on its finding that as long as there were clear guidelines and standards spelled out by Congress in delegating authority, there is no excessive delegation.  Further, the Court held that the separation of powers doctrine does NOT seek to establish three mutually exclusive, totally separate branches.

g. United States v. Watts
i. Issue: Whether a sentencing court may consider conduct of the defendant’s underlying charges, of which they have been acquitted.
ii. Facts:

1. Jury convicted Watts of possessing cocaine with intent to distribute.

2. Watts was acquitted on the charge that he used a firearm in relation to the drug offense (beyond a shadow of a doubt standard).

3. The District Court found by a preponderance of the evidence that Watts DID possess the guns in connection with the drug offense and added to points to Watts’ base level offense.

4. Watts argued that allowing the increase would effectively punish him for an offense he had been acquitted of.

iii. Holding and Analysis:

1. 18 USC §3661 ( NO LIMITATION shall be placed on the information concerning background, character, and conduct of a person which a court may receive and consider when imposing a sentence.

2. “Accordingly, the Guidelines conclude that ‘[r]elying on the entire range of conduct, regardless of the number of counts that are alleged or on which a conviction is obtained, appears to be the most reasonable approach to writing workable guidelines for these offenses.’”

XXII. Domestic Terrorism

(We read the World Trade Center bombing and bin Laden indictments.) 

(In-class presentation by the new US attorney N.D.-Illinois)

Themes: Try to get the world to take the terrorists seriously. 

Extraordinary rendition - Places the suspect on a plane and brings him back to the US.  This is acceptable unless the seizure was “shocking to the conscience.”

Rendition is usually preferred because it is easier if other countries just surrender people to the US, rather than the US having to assume risks by attacking/invading, or else going through lengthy proceedings.

Immigration laws are pretty porous, as a foreigner can enter the US using a false name, be detained for that offense, and then not have to show up for a hearing until four months later to explain himself.  During those four months, he may roam free within the US.  

Intelligence taps – These are legal for investigating crimes (as well as for intelligence gathering).  

The language of the wire tap provisions should be changed from primary to substantive purposes that it is used for intelligence purposes (FISA).  (???)

Executive Order 12333 allows one to do a wire-tap if a judicial order is not available.

§ 2384  - If you start your own civil insurrection, then you get 20 years.  

If you conspire to bomb something, instead of the 5 year penalty, you can actually get a sentence as severe as you would had succeeding in carrying out the bombing.

18 USC § 373 – Anyone who, in seriousness, solicits others to commit a crime, may be themselves prosecuted.

If you are not an American citizen, you do not have constitutional rights under our Constitution.  The US government may do anything it wants to foreigners on US soil, as long as it does not shock the conscience. 

What’s the difference btw Bledsoe and Perholtz?








� what if lobbyist blackmailed other candidate? Not mail fraud b/c public has no right to lobbyist’s honest services. Fasulo v. US( extortion cannot be the basis for a mail fraud conviction.


� Former governor, prosecuted during Nixon administration, when 13 key legislators also known to be involved never had charges brought against them.  Kerner, though, had helped elect Kennedy and defeat Nixon.  JIM THOMPSON was the US Attorney who prosecuted him, and then he was elected. While serving as Governor, he and another official made a gain of over $300,000 in a questionable stock deal which prosecutors later characterized as bribery. Convicted in 1973 on 17 counts of bribery, conspiracy, perjury, and related charges; sentenced to three years in federal prison and fined $50,000.


� US v. McDougal *8th Cir.  1998)   D mailed loan form.  Argued that it was mailed after she received the loan. 


HELD:  Mailing can come w/in statute if it is necessary to permit the D to retain the fruits of fraud.





� US Atty’s: Clever trick was that customers are the one’s defrauded (ultimate retail purchasers)(Good move? It undermines repeat business rationale, b/c he doesn’t have repeat relationship with customers buying cars. Also, b/c it looks like mailing aids the retail sale than D’s sale to the dealers. Helps Govt. how?  Looks like mail didn’t come after fruition of the scheme. D’s response: one shot snooker, he’s not part of ongoing scheme.


� No federal statue that addresses bribery of state and local officials.  Hobbs Act, mail fraud and Travel Act usually used for those prosecutions. 


� Hello. The devil?!


� Not convincing.  Booze and tobacco kill more peeps.


� Only extends to D’s property.  Holmes theory is the property itself is guilty.  Other theory is just don’t let D keep tools of his trade.  Big Al: Serves penal goals haphazardly at best, but we’ve been extending this form.  Real estate was never forfeited as an instrumentality before, but RICO and CCE don’t distinguish real estate property.  Farms, hotels, homes—all too much.


� What’s the difference btw enterprise and instrumentality forfeiture? When corporation guilty of RICO through it’s employees, govt. can get the enterprise (incl. Subsidiaries).  Difference is in the emphasis. Inherently going to be s/o who’s committed the offense, so the enterprise won’t be innocent. Plus enterprise FF is more forward looking b/c preventative (owner’s done things in the past and likely to misuse enterprise in the future) Instrumentality is backward looking:  property tainted b/c used in crime before.  


� Austin v. US (1993) civil ff can be imposed as punishment, and when it can only be explained as serving  in part  as punishment, it’s governed by Excessive Fines Clause.


� Majority says, hello, that’s ineffective assistance of counsel so D can get off--  not really  b/c that’s a tough case to win under Strickland v. Washington , where Ct. placed heavy burden on D’s alleging ineffective assistance. Have to demonstrate gross derelictions by L and actual prejudice by those derelictions.
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